AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY
SERVICES DISTRICT

Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA. 93424
Meeting Room and Office — 100 San Luis Street, Avila Beach
Telephone (805) 595-2664 FAX (805) 595-7623
E-Mail avilacsd@gmail.com

BOARD MEETING
1:00 PM Tuesday, January 10th, 2023

ZOOM MEETING: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/4111787571
Meeting ID: 411 178 7571 Password: No Password Required.

BY PHONE: 1-669-900-9128

CALL TO ORDER: 1:00 P.M.

ROLL CALL: Board Members:
Pete Kelley, President
Ara Najarian, Vice President
Kristin Berry, Director
Howie Kennett, Director
John Janowicz, Director

PUBLIC COMMENT

Members of the public wishing to comment or bring forward any items concerning District
operations which do not appear on today's agenda may address the Board now. Please
state name and address before addressing the Board and limit presentations to 3 minutes.
State law does not allow Board action on items not appearing on the agenda.

INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION ITEMS

County Reports

1. SLO County Sheriff Department

2. CalFire/County Fire Department
Reports on Attended Conferences, Meetings, and General Communications of
District Interest



CONSENT ITEMS:
These items are approved with one motion. Directors may briefly discuss any item, or

may pull any item, which is then added to the business agenda.

Minutes of December 13%, 2022, Board Meeting

Monthly Financial Review for December 2022

General Manager and District Engineer Report

Water and Wastewater Operations Reports for December 2022

Sow

DISCUSSION OF PULLED CONSENT ITEMS
At this time, items pulled for discussion from the Consent Agenda, if any, will be heard.

BUSINESS ITEMS: Items where Board action is called for.

Public Hearing and Second Reading of an Ordinance No. 2022-01, amending the
District’s Fire Code

(Action Required: Open Public Comment; Read Ordinance by Title only: Adopt
Ordinance 2022-01 Amending the ABCSD Fire Code Ordinance)

Election of Officers and Board Committee Appointments
(Action Required: Elect Board officers and Committee appointments for calendar year

2023)

COMMUNICATIONS/ COORESPONDENCE
At this time, any Director, or Staff, may ask questions for clarification, make any announcements, or report
briefly on any activities or suggest items for future agendas.

ADJOURN
The next Special Meeting will be held on February 14™, 2023 at 3:00pm.

Any writing or document pertaining to an open session item on this agenda which is distributed to a majority of the Board after the

posting of this agenda will be available for public inspection at the time the subject writing or document is distributed. The writing or document
will be available for public review in the District Administration Office; 100 San Luis Street, Avila Beach, CA during normal business hours.
Consistent with the Americans with Disabilities Act and California Government Code Section 54954.2 requests for disability related modification
or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services may be made by a person with a disability who requires the modification or
accommodation in order to participate at the above referenced public meeting by contacting the District at 805-595-2664.



MINUTES OF SPECIAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
Avila Beach Community Services District
Tuesday, December 13th, 2022
3:00 P.M.

ZOOM MEETING: 411 178 7571

Meeting ID: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/4111787571
BY PHONE: 1-669-900-9128

1. CALL TO ORDER

President Kelley called the meeting of the Board of Directors of the Avila Beach Community Services
District, to order at 3:04 P.M. on the above date, in the Avila Beach Community Services District Building,
100 San Luis Street, Avila Beach, California.

OATH OF OFFICE: Peter Kelley, Ara Najarian and John Janowicz were sworn in as Directors.
2. ROLL CALL

Board Members Present Pete Kelley
Kristin Berry
John Janowicz
Howie Kennett

Ara Najarian

Board Members Absent: None

Staff Present: Brad Hagemann, General Manager and District Engineer
Kristi Dibbern, Office Manager

FRM Operations: Jeff Cedillos, FRM

Legal Counsel: Not Present

All directors both assuming and exiting office must file a Form 700 within 30 days of a change of
office.

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS

No Public Comment.

4. INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION ITEMS

A. County Reports

Sheriff’s Report: Sheriff Hank Abbas reported 84 calls for service this month. Seven disturbances, 1
suspicious circumstance, 11 preventive patrol. The SLO County Sheriff’s Patrol found an at-risk missing
student in the Cave Landing area this month.



Cal Fire: Fire Marshall Kevin McLean attended the meeting and reported 40 calls for service this month,
18 were medically related. Grant money has been allocated for brush clearing in the Gragg Canyon and
Baron Canyon areas during December/January. Fire Marshall McLean reminded the Board and public to
use faux candles without flames this holiday season. He also suggested removing dry Christmas trees
promptly to avoid a house fire.

B. Conferences, Meetings and General Communications.
Director Najarian attended the Garbagemen’s Holiday Party. He recommended that everyone attend next
year. He enjoyed the opportunity to network with countywide officials and directors from other CSDs.

5. CONSENT ITEMS

Director Najarian made a motion to approve the Consent Items. It was seconded by Director Berry and
passed with a roll call vote 5-0.

AYES: Ara Najarian
Kristin Berry
Howie Kennett
John Janowicz
Pete Kelley

NOES: None
ABSENT: None

6. DISCUSSION OF PULLED CONSENT ITEMS: None

7. BUSINESS ITEMS:

A. Local Fire Code Ordinance No. 2022-01

Every three years the California Building Code Commission updates the State Fire Code. The District
considers updating the local Fire Code Ordinance to be consistent with updated State Standards. Cal
Fire/County Fire Marshal Kevin McLean presented the First Reading of the Ordinance, highlighting the
Fire Code changes with a Power Point presentation. The Board provided an opportunity for public
comment and staff responded to comments. Director Berry made a motion to set the Public Hearing date for
adoption of the Ordinance on January 10™ 2023. Director Kennett seconded the motion and the motion

passed with a roll call vote 5-0.

AYES: Kristin Berry
Howie Kennett
John Janowicz
Ara Najarian
Pete Kelley

NOES: None
ABSENT: None



B. Consider adopting Resolution No. 2022-12, authorizing staff to Participate in the development
of the County DESAL Plan (Plan).
GM Hagemann summarized the staff report noting that, on October 18 2022, the County Board of
Supervisors approved of their staff moving forward on the Plan. ABCSD could be a key agency as
we are one of the few agencies with a permitted ocean outfall line that could potentially be used for
brine disposal. Director Najarian made a motion to approve Resolution No. 2022-12, supporting
District participation in the County DESAL Plan. Director Berry seconded the motion and the
motion passed with a roll call vote 5-0.

AYES: Ara Najarian
Kristin Berry
Howie Kennett
John Janowicz
Pete Kelley

NOES: None
ABSENT: None

COMMUNICATIONS/CORRESPONDENCE.
None

ADJOURNMENT: The meeting was adjourned at 3:50 P.M.

The next regular meeting of the Avila Beach Community Services District is scheduled for Tuesday,
December 10th, 2023, at 3:00 PM at 100 San Luis Street, Avila Beach.

These minutes are not official nor a permanent part of the records until approved by the Board of Directors
at their next meeting.

Respectfully submitted,

Brad Hagemann, PE
General Manager






AVILA BEACH
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA 93424

MEMORANDUM
TO: Board of Directors e

l_.." \: r\rlﬁl
FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Managcr\’\ 7
DATE: January 10th, 2023

SUBJECT: Monthly Financial Review for December

Recommendation:
Receive and file report.

Overall Monthly Summary

During the month of December, the District deposited $234,295.17 and incurred $174,721.75 in
expenses (cash basis). Non-monthly expenses included $77,558.17 for our semi-annual payment
for Lopez water; Annual Water Board permit fees totaling $7,885.00; and a onetime payment of
$16,408 to South County Sanitation (our garbage collection/disposal contractor) that recovered
the retroactive service fees that were incurred prior to the new garbage rate going into effect.

Water and sewer revenue for the month of December was $54,867.43. This is relatively low and
is attributed to many folks being out of town and a low amount of tourists visiting in December.
Deposits from County Taxes this month totaled $151,529.87

Detailed financial reports including a Balance Sheets, Deposits by Fund, Checks by Fund and
Profit and Loss Sheets are provided for your information for the month of December.

Utility Service Billing

The District billed approximately $54,129.88 in water and sewer service charges in December.
Customer Rate Assistance reduced billing charges to the District in the amount of $737.55.

Operation and Maintenance

The statement for December from Fluid Resource Management (FRM) is attached. This invoice
appears to be relatively high, but it includes a capital improvement program invoice for $82,247
that is associated with the “fit-up” of the MBR system at the WWTP. This invoice will be paid
with WWTP project loan funds.



12:11 PM Avila Beach Community Services District

01/04/23 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis December 2022

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
4000 - Income Summary
4010 - Operating Revenue
4012 - Solid Waste Franchise Fee
4020 - Contract Services-Ambulance
4030 - County Taxes

Total 4000 - Income Summary
Total Income
Gross Profit

Expense
5100 - Merchant Credit Card Fees
5110 - Amex
5120 - Chase Paymentech
5140 - Invoice Cloud

Total 5100 - Merchant Credit Card Fees

5200 - Payroll Expenses
5210 - Gross Wages
5211 - Regular Pay
5012 - Holiday Pay
5014 - Sick Pay
5016 - Vacation Pay

Total 5210 - Gross Wages
5230 - Payroll Taxes

5240 - Health & Medical Exp.
5242 - Health Ins / Other

Total 5240 - Health & Medical Exp.

5250 - PERS Company Pd Expense
5256 - PERS Co Pd Kristi

Total 5250 - PERS Company Pd Expense

5280 - Payroll Administration & Misc.

Total 5200 - Payroll Expenses

Dec 22

54,867.43
2,358.26
1,166.22

151,529.87

209,921.78

209,921.78

209,921.78

12.00
260.00
337.99

609.99

3,5625.65
223.26
0.00
0.00

3,748.91
65.96

800.00

800.00

335.87

335.87
140.32

5,091.06

Page 1



12:11 PM
01/04/23

Accrual Basis

Avila Beach Community Services District

Profit & Loss
December 2022

6000 - Administrative Overheads

6102 - Accounting

6103 - Accounting Audit

6115 - Bank Service Charges

6135 - Legal

6140 - Office Supplies & Postage
6142 - Postage & Shipping
6143 - Supplies, Office

Total 6140 - Office Supplies & Postage

6150 - Rate Assistance
6170 - Website

Total 6000 - Administrative Overheads

6500 - Operating Expenses

6503 - Chemicals

6505 - Contract Labor O & M

6506 - Contract Labor GM

6507 - Contract Labor Civil Engineer
6520 - Equipment Repair & Maint.

6522 - Equip. Rep. & Maint-Avila & HD

6524 - Eqip. Rep. & Maint. Avila Only
Total 6520 - Equipment Repair & Maint.

6530 - Generator Maintenance
6535 - Insurance P/L

6540 - Lab Tests

6542 - Maintenance

6550 - Operating Supplies
6555 - Permits & Fees

6580 - Solids Handling

6585 - Telephone / Internet
6590 - Utilities

Dec 22

1,200.00
1,673.00
-60.00
92.00

203.22
193.16

396.38

737.55
200.00

4,238.93

5,408.34
22,299.00
1,650.00
3,600.00

5,954.28

97850

6,932.78

450.00
2,034.74
4,749.00

654.50
1,398.61
7,885.00
2,143.23

705.10

21,123.82

Total 6500 - Operating Expenses

6800 - Water
6802 - Lopez

Total 6800 - Water
Total Expense

Net Ordinary Income

81,034.12

77,558.17

77,558.17

168,532.27

41,389.51

Page2



12:11 PM Avila Beach Community Services District
01/04/23 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis December 2022

Dec 22

Other Income/Expense
Other Expense
9990 - Refund 1,028.92
8200 - Non-Operating Expenses
8230 - Capital Purchases in Prog Sani
8245 - WWTP Improvement Project

8245g - WWTP Cannon CM Services 10,246.80
8245d - WWTP Wallace Group Enginee... 1,899.25
Total 8245 - WWTP Improvement Project 12,146.05
Total 8230 - Capital Purchases in Prog Sani 12,146.05

Total 8200 - Non-Operating Expenses 12,146.05
Total Other Expense 13,174.97
Net Other Income -13,174.97
Net Income | 28,214.54

Page 3



12:12 PM

01/04/23
Accrual Basis

Balance Sheet
As of December 31, 2022

Avila Beach Community Services District

ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
1000 - Cash Summary
1005 : Customer Cash
1008 - Petty Cash
1010 - Pacific Premier Checking
1050 - LAIF
1060 - US Bank MM WWTP

Dec 31, 22

525.01
45.48
820,338.42
3,853,330.40
796,242.24

Total 1000 - Cash Summary

5,470,481.55

Total Checking/Savings

Accounts Receivable
1200 - *Accounts Receivable

Total Accounts Receivable

Other Current Assets
1250 - Receivables
1255 - Interest Receivable
1270 - Taxes Receivable
1280 - Water & Sewer Billings

5,470,481.55

-81,054.00

-81,054.00

7,280.62
57,104.14
100,395.40

Total 1250 - Receivables

1400 - Prepaid Summary
1410 - Prepaid Insurance

164,780.16

12,255.94

Total 1400 - Prepaid Summary

12,255.94

Total Other Current Assets

177,036.10

Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets
1600 - Fixed Assets & Acc. Depr.
1605 - Office Equipment
1606 - Copier Samsung 2012
1609 - Office Equipment Accum Depr

5,566,463.65

8,233.58
-16,373.00

Total 1605 - Office Equipment

-8,139.42



12:12 PM

01/04/23
Accrual Basis

Balance Sheet

As of December 31, 2022

Avila Beach Community Services District

1610 - Fixed Asset -Office & Admin.
1612 - Office Furniture cost
1614 - Office Furniture Accum Dep.

Total 1610 - Fixed Asset -Office & Ad...

1620 - Fixed Assets - Sanitary
1622 - Land

1626 - Collection Assets
1627 - Collection Assets Cost
1628 * Collect Assets Accum Depr

Total 1626 - Collection Assets

1630 - Disposal Equipment
1631 - Disposal Equip Cost
1632 - Disposal Equip Accum Depr

Total 1630 - Disposal Equipment

1634 - Other Equipment
1634a - Other Equipment Cost

Total 1634 - Other Equipment

1635 - Treatment Plant
1636 * Treatment Plant Original
1637 - Treatment Plant Addition
1638 - Treatment Plant Accum Dep

Total 1635 - Treatment Plant

1642 - Treatment Equipment
1643 - Treatment Equip Cost
1644 - Treatment Equip Accum D...

1642 - Treatment Equipment - Oth...

Total 1642 - Treatment Equipment
Total 1620 - Fixed Assets - Sanitary

1650 - Fixed Assets - Water
1652 - Equipment
1653 - Equipment Cost
1654 - Equipment Accum Depr

Total 1652 - Equipment

Dec 31, 22

4,5626.21
-4,526.21

0.00

60,334.10

1,517,267.58
-593,752.02

923,515.56

611,174.66
-376,478.88

234,695.78

6,973.40

6,973.40

105,000.00
2,049,098.30
-1,519,694 .40

634,403.90

1,087,410.54
-787,343.49
205,485.61

505,552.66

2,365,475.40

21,136.28
-21,136.28

0.00

Page 2



12:12 PM Avila Beach Community Services District

01/04/23 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of December 31, 2022
Dec 31,22
1656 - Distribuation Assets
1657 - Distribuation Assets Cost 1,270,572.25
1658 - Dist Assets Accum Depr -755,498.34
Total 1656 - Distribuation Assets 515,073.91
Total 1650 - Fixed Assets - Water 515,073.91
1680 - Structures - Fixed Asset
1681 - Structures GFAAG - Sani & FA 164,414 .58
1682 - Gen / Fire Accum Dep -109,252.42
Total 1680 - Structures - Fixed Asset 55,162.16
1690 - Construction in Progress 2,220,035.96
Total 1600 - Fixed Assets & Acc. Depr. 5,147,608.01
Total Fixed Assets 5,147,608.01
Other Assets
1800 - Deferred Outflows of Resources 28,724.00
Total Other Assets 28,724.00
TOTAL ASSETS 10,742,795.66
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
2100 - Accounts Payable 193,478.86
Total Accounts Payable 193,478.86
Other Current Liabilities
2200 - Payroll Liabilities
2255 - Accrued Interest FB Auditor 71,347.50
2201 - Accrued Payroll 2,540.00
2260 - Vacation Payable 3,791.40
2262 - Sick Pay Accrued 2,308.92
2250 - PERS Liability 227.92
Total 2200 - Payroll Liabilities 80,215.74

Page 3



12:12 PM Avila Beach Community Services District

01/04/23 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of December 31, 2022
Dec 31, 22
2300 - Deposits Held
2303 - Water Deposits Held 6,430.00
Total 2300 - Deposits Held 6,430.00
Total Other Current Liabilities 86,645.74
Total Current Liabilities 280,124.60
Long Term Liabilities
2400 - Net Pension Liability 92,927.00
2450 - U.S. Bank Loan WWTP 2,814,183.01
2500 - Deferred Inflows of Resources 86,221.00
2999 - Unbalanced Classes -3,992,989.31
Total Long Term Liabilities -999,658.30
Total Liabilities -719,5633.70

Equity
3900 - Retained Earnings
Net Income

Total Equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

12,342,527.65
-880,198.29

11,462,329.36

10,742,795.66

Page 4



| abed

1€°90L L- 000 rwslid oyoed - 0L0L ZJ49Y0 2202/90/21 usodaQ
LE€90L°)L- 000 Twisld dyided - 0101 L JoUIO  2202/90/21 ¥sode(
L€°90L - 000 TTueld Jijided - 0101 aouelsissy ajey  Zz0z/90/Z1 NsodeQ
LE90L'}- 9.'661- TwRld ouded - 0101 o9y lues  Zz0z/90/21 WsodeQ
GG'905'L- 000 TwRld duded - 0LOL Z19Ul0  220z/50/2L Ysodag
GG'90G'L- 000 rwald oyided - 0LolL | JsWO Z202/S0/2)L sodeqQ
GS'90S L~ 05 Twisld dyided - 0L0L douelsIsSy d)ed  Z¢0z/50/¢) ¥sodaq
SO'vLG - 1S°v8C- wield oyioed - 0L0oL o9y lueg  Zz0e/S0/Z) ¥sodagQ
8v'6ce’L- 000 “wiaid dyided - 0101 Z48Yl0 Zz0ez/vo/elL wsodeQ
8¥'62C |- 000 Twidid duided - 0LOL | J8W0  Z20eZ/v0/z)l wsodeQ
8¥'62¢C'}- €LY Twiald duided - 0104 aouesissy a1ey  Z20Z/b0/2L WsodeQ
Levee'L- 81L°9¢L- TTwiald duioed - 0101 o8y luBS ZZ0Z/¥0/Z) Wsodaq
€0'860°L- 000 wsid dyided - 0LOL Z48Y0 22oz/eo/zL wsodeQg
€0'860'L- 000 Twield dulded - 0L0L | 1Yl 2202/€0/21L ¥soda(Q
€0°'860°L- 96°1L “wisld ouloed - 0LOL aouejsissy aley zz0z/c0/¢L Hsode(
66°660°L- 9¥'801- “wisld dylded - 0LOL o9y lues Zz0oz/c0/zl ¥sode(Q
£G°166- TASR N “wiald oyoed - 0101 ZJ9Ul0 Zz0z/eorzl WsodsQ
10°986- 000 “rwield ouioed - 0LOL L JoUl0 2202Z/20/2) ¥sodeQ
L0986~ 4201 wialdd oyided - 0101 soue)sissy a)ey zz0z/20/ZL HsodeQ
8¢°966- 26°09¢- wisld dlloed - 0L0L d8y lues  Zz0z/z0/zL ¥Msode(
9€°G6e.- 000 “rwisld oyloed - 0101 Z4WO 2202/10/21 wsodeQg
9¢e'6e.- 000 “wisld dylded - 0L0L L J8YI0 2202/L0/2lL usodeq
9€'6eL- 05, TTwsldd dyided - 0101 aoue)sissy djey  zz0zg/Lo/gl Hsodeq
98°¢v.- 98¢yl TTweld dyloed - 0101 J9Y lues  zz0z/Lo/gL Ysode(

Aiejiueg

GlL'vig'e- SlLyig'e- sjybI ejo
GlL'yL8'c- GL'yLe'e- “Tlald d4Ioed - OLOL T SIUBIT ‘GZT JeIB M ‘0L T UBD - | # MdINI - SN AON €2 Ad 401 2202/80/Z) zmMawn_

SIYoIT

LE V29 G- LE'¥29'vS- ulwipy / [eJauag) [Bjo |
LE VT ¥S- 60°86€°'€S- “Twdld OyIoed - 0L0L T SIUBI ‘GZT Jelep 0L T ueD - | # HdINI - IIN AON €2 Ad 401  2202/80/21 Nsodeq
A TAA 2Z'991')L- Twsld dided - 0101 S8JIAI8S JOBNUOD BOUBINQWY TS Z2202/90/21 ¥sode(
00°09- 00°09- TTwBld dlIoed - 0L0L U BMSIS LG'P0L $ 104 LG PIL § 22/82/1L L U0 210G # A0 PJID Yued  ZZ0Z/90/Z) Hsodeq

ulwpy / [edouan

aouejeg Junowy Hids ITTETT] ajeq adA)

€202 Jaquadag

pun4 Aq sysodaq €2/¥0/10

19LISI] S921AI9S AJIUNWWO) Yoeag BlIAY



¢ abed

G8'L6V'C6- 20°'168'L- Twislad dyoed - 0L0L o9y lues zz0z/9L/ZL MWsode(Q
€8°009'06- 66'€LE “Uwiald dylded - 0101 T'2/0L swoolisay yled Ajunwwog Ajejeredag payoog zz/S1/2L  2202/SL/ZL Wsodeq
Z8'v16'06- 000 wiald oylded - 0L0L Z Y0 2zzoz/SLicl wsodaQ
28'v1L6'06- Lr'Gel rweld ouided - QLOL | I8YI0  2202Z/G17ZL ¥sode(Q
€2°0v0°L6- 08°'0C Twild duided - 0LOL souejsissy a)ey ¢z0z/SlL/zL HsodeQ
€0°190°'L6- ZS'6v0°L- wsld dulded - 0101 o9y IUES  2Z0Z/SlL/gl wsode(Q
161 10°06" 66°ELE- Twsld olioed - 0101 Z2/0E/1 ) - 82/01 swoouisay jled Ayunwiwod  Zz0oz/SL/zL Wsodaqg
¢5°.69'68- 000 Twield duded - 0LoL ZJeWo Zzoz/vl/zl wsodeg
25°.69'68- 000 Twisld diided - 0101 | BYIO  Z202/7L/ZL wsodeq
25°.69'68- 8c’ 0¥ rwiald diided - 0L0L souelsissy aley  Zzoz/vL/zL Msodeq
08°L£.'68- €v'962°C- wiaid dljided - 0101 o9y lues Zzoz/vl/zl WsodeqQ
LE°LYY'L8- 000 wiald oljloed - 0LOL Z 8y zzoz/el/zl sodeqg
LE° LYY L8 66°08 wisld oljioed - 0L0) | 1410  Z20z/el/zl usode(Q
9€'¢es 18- 000 wisld oiloed - 0L0L aoue)sissy ajey zzoz/ch/igcl HsodeQ
9€'2¢s'/8- ¥6°G€¢- “"wisld aiidoed - 0101 o9y lues  Zzoz/el/gl wsodaqQ
cyo8l'Le- 000 Twald oyloed - L0l ZJBWPO Zzoz/zl/zl wsodag
Zy o8l /8- 000 rueld ouloed - 0L0L L 18Y0 ZZ0z/ZLizl WsodeQ
v'981°.8- 69'LS ruaid oyided - 010} aouejsissy ajed  zz0z/ZL/ZzL ¥sodeQ
L1'8€EC 18- €9'128°L- Trweld oyiloed - 0LOL o9y lues zgoz/zl/zl wsodeqQ
8y 9Lv'Ge- 000 wield dliided - 0101 ZJau0 22oz/ol/zL wsode(
8y '9Ly'e8- 000 “wiaid dided - 0101 L 9O  Z202/0L/2) usode(
8y '9LP'Ge- 000 wsldd diided - 0101 souelsissy ajey 2z0z/0L/ZL ¥sodaQ
8y 9Lp'G8- 0C'v9- wiald diided - 0101 o9y lues Zz0z/0L/gl WsodeqQ
82°2G€'G8- 000 wiaid dulded - 0L0L 2 18Yyl0 220z/60/2L ¥HsodaQg
8C°25¢£'68- 000 wald dulded - 0LolL | IBYI0  2202/60/21L Nsode(
8g'z5¢'G8- 000 wisid oiloed - 0L0L souelsissy ajey Zz0z/60/¢1 sode(
82°25¢'6G8- 68°GLY L leld duided - 0LOL o9y ueg  2z0z/60/Z1 Msode(
6€9.8'22- 8¢'8lL- Tuald oyided - 0L0L ZJoUi0 ZZ0z/80/21L Wsodeq
11°898°LL- 000 “rwald dylded - 0101 | 18Ul  2202/80/21 ¥sode(
11°86Q' /.- L6'¢c Truisld duided - 0101 douelsissy ajey  2202/80/¢) Nsodeqg
29°088'LL- 26'6€5- Twld ouioed - 0101 09y lues  Zz0z/80/21 sodeqQ
0L 0vE'LL- 88'9vZ'GL- Twield olided - 0LOL aseM - AN AON €2 Ad 401 2202/80/21 ¥sode(Q
28'¢60°2- 8€'8¢- wald oyided - 0101 ZoUl0 2Z20z/L0/2) ¥sodeQg
v¥'6S0°¢C- 000 “weld oljloed - 0L0L | 18YI0  2202/L0/2) ¥sode(
¥¥°'650°C- 000 Twisid olided - 010l souelsissy 8jey  ¢¢0¢/L0/¢L ¥Wsode(Q
v¥'G50°2- €Leve- “Twild dljioed - 0101 o9y lues zz0z/L0/ZL WsodaQ
souejeqg junouwry uds oW ajeq adA]
€20¢ 12quadag
pung Aq sjsodaq €2ivo/L0

JoUISIA S921AI9S AJUnWWo) Yoeag BlIAY



¢ obey

G8'98v'cLL- €0 19C’L- "wiald dyioed - 0101 o9y lues  zg0e/6e/el Wsode(
A NAZA AN €cel “wald dyloed - L0l ZJIW0 2z0z/8Z/z) ¥sodeQg
S0'9€2CLL- A AV TA Tueld oulded - 0LoL L 19WO 2202/82/21 ¥sodeQ
8G'SY6 LLL- or'6 “Twald dyioed - 0LOL souelsissy aley Zz0z/8¢/gl HsodeQ
r0'SS6°LL1- €.°9.0°¢C- wield dyided - 0101 o9y lueS gz0e/8e/el ¥sode(
L€°8.8°601- 000 Twisid dyded - 0101 ZYo zzoz/lzizl wsodeq@
1€°8.8'601L- 000 wsld dlided - 0101 L I8YlO 2202//2/2L wsodeQ
1€'8/8°601- 96°|) “Twield dided - 0L0L doue)sissy dey  Zz0z/L2Z/gL Nsode(
£2°088'601- ¥9'v81- Tweld duided - 0L0L o9y lues zgoz/LzZ/zL wsode(
€9°669°601- 000 rwiaid dylded - 0L0L ZJayl0 zzoz/ez/zl wsodeg
€9'669°601- 000 Twisid duided - 0101 | 1BYO ZZ0oz/ez/zl WsodeQ
€9°669'601- 000 TTleld dlided - 0101 aouelsissy 8ley  2c0z/ez/zl ¥usode(Q
€9°'669'601- 19°0¢CL- weld dylded - 0L0L o9y lueg  2z0z/ez/z)l Msode(
96'v.5'601- 000 Twisldd diylded - 0LOL Z9Yl0 Z20z/ZZ/zL ¥wsodaQg
96'¥.5'601- 000 uiald dyided - 0LOL | I8N0 220z/ZZ/Z) Nsode(
96'¥.5'601- 000 wsldd oyided - 0L0L aduejsissy dley 220z/ZZ/¢L ¥MsodaQg
96'v.5'60L- AN 44% “'wiald oiided - gLOL o9y lues zz0z/zz/zl dsodeq
9 0E'601- 000 “wald ouided - 0LoL Z1oyl0 22oz/1z/zL ¥sodeQ
¥9°0¢t'601- 000 Twield duided - 0101 | JayO zzoz/Le/zl sodeQ
90’601 - 000 weld auided - 0101 aouelsIssy ajey  zz0z/Le/gl HsodeQ
¥9°0€¥'601- L6’ VG- Twsld duded - 0L0L o9y lues  zzoz/le/gl Msode(Q
€1°6.6'80L- SL'LL “wiald aljoed - 0L0L ZBWO Zz02/02/2) ¥sodeqg
88°250°601- cr'Ls Twiald dyioed - 0101 | 18UI0  Z202/0Z/2L ¥soda(Q
0€'¥0L'601- 052 Twaldd dylded - 0101 aoue)sissy sley ZZ0¢/0¢/¢L Nsode(
08°'L1L1°601- 86°606~ "wiald ouided - 0L0L o9y lUBS  ZZ02/0Z/21 Nsodeq
28°102°801- AN rwisld duided - 0L0L Z48yl0 220z/6l/gl MsodeQ
05°251°801L- 000 Twiald dylded - 0LOL | YO 2Z0Z/6L/Z1L NsodeQ
0S5°251°801- 96'6¢ wisid duided - 0L0L soue)sissy ajey zz0z/6L/gL HsodaQ
9¥°'2¢61°801- §6°C8.L¢e- wsld dyided - 0LOL o9y lues  gz0e/6l/g) usodeQ
L6'60% ¥0L- 98°20¢ lieid diloed - 0L0L Z4eUl0 220z/8l/zl ¥sodeg
L2 /19'v0L- rAAY Twiald duyided - QLOL | YO 2202Z/8L/2) ¥sodeQ
61819701~ GG'08 uald ayided - L0l aouejsissy ajey 2z0z/g8l/zl ¥sodeq
v.°869'v01- vy iz wisld ayided - 0L0L o9y lues  zzoz/gl/zl WsodeQ
o€’ LLY'C6- 000 “wield dljioed - 0101 Z8Yl0 Zz0Z/91/2L Wsodeqg
0€'LLY'C6" 000 wsld diided - 0L0L L I8UI0  2202/91/2L ¥sode(Q
0gLL¥'C6- GG'0C “wisid dyioed - 0101 souelsissy aley  2z0z/91/Z1 ¥sodaQg
aouejeg junowy Mds ITTETTY] ajeq adA)
¢20¢ 12quadaqg
pung Aq sjisodag £2/70/1L0

J9L3SIQ S22IAI8S AJUNWwo) yoseag elIAY



¢ abed

9 122°)- 000 wield dljided - 0101 Z8W0O 2Z0Z/v0/2) WsodaQg
av'122')- 000 “'weld dylded - 0101 | I8YO  Z20Z/v0/e) NsodeqQ
' LLZ - 0.0l TTwield dyloed - 0101 souelsissy 8ley  zz0Z/v0/gL HsodaQg
91°28¢'L- ev'191- “Ulaid dijoed - 0101 o9y Jelep  2202/v0/gL Hsodaqg
eLYLL - 000 wisid oyioed - 0L0L Z1oYlo  zzoz/eorzl ysodeQ
ELPLL L 000 rwald oyloed - 0L01L | $8YO 220z/c0/el Nsodag
eLyLLL- 986 wield ouloed - 0LOL aoue)sIsSy ajey Zg0z/c0/¢l Hsode(
R AN gl'8le- wiald oloed - 0LoL o9y J9Jep\  Z202Z/€0/Z) ¥sodeQg
L¥'906- 000 TTwsld dyided - 0L0L ZJ49YI0 2eoz/zo/el usodeQ
L¥'906- 000 'wiald dylded - 0LOL L I9YIO  2202/20/21 Wsode(
L¥'906- LE'CL Twsld auided - 0101 aoue)sissy ey zz0¢/c0/z) Nsode(
84,816~ 91'v9¢- “"Wiaid diided - 0101 o9y JeleM  ZZ0Z/20/2l WsodeQ
29°'v69- 000 “Twield dlided - 0LOL ZI9WO Zz0z/10/2) Wsodag
29°v59- 000 “weld dlided - 0L0L | BYO 2202/L0/2) ¥sodeQ
29'v59- 12N TTwRid dided - 0L0L aouejsissy ajey zz0z/L0/gL HsodaQg
91'999- 91'999- “Uwiald ailoed - 0101 o9y JoleM  Z2202/10/2)L HsodaQ

191epA

9z'85¢e'¢e- 92'8s¢€'¢- d)SeM plIoS [ejolL
9¢'8G€'C- 92'85€'¢- weld diided - 0L0L MS 994 asiyouel suonddUUOYD ISBEM  220Z/L2/Z) ¥sodaq

9)SEM plIoS

v62oL'ElL- ¥6°29L°€LL- Aejueg |ejo )
¥6°29L°CL |- 19°0LE- TlBld diided - 0101 $OO rAVY AONVIVE SE°129 $ 220eg/ie/gl Msode(Q
L2°TSreLlL- 000 Trwisld d4ided - 0101 2940 zzoz/Le/gl wsode(Q
12°28¥'CLL- 000 “wald diided - 0LOL | IBYIO 2Z0Z/LEfZL WsodaQ
L2°TSYELL- 000 TTweld duided - 0101 douelsissy aley  ¢z0z/Lefcl Hsodag
L2°TSv'ELL- S9'€e- wald diided - 0101 o9y lues zgoe/Le/gl usodeQ
zo'ger'ell- 000 wald dylded - 0L0L Z9Ylo  2ZzZ0z/0g/2lL wsodeq
zco'ger'elLlL- 000 “wisid duided - 0LOL L IoY0  Zz0z/0€/2) WsodaQ
29'ger'elLlL- 000 “Twsld dyided - 0101 souejsissy dley  ¢¢0z/0€/zL HsodaQ
z9'8Tv'elLlL- S9'ee “wield olioed - 0101 o9y lues  Zzoz/0¢/zl Ysodeq
LB'VOY'ELL- SL'LL “rweld dyided - 0101 ZJIYO 2geozee/ecl WsodeQg
zLzavelL- 000 Twald dyided - 0L0L | YO 2202/62/2) Msode(
zLzeyelLlL- €L’y Twieid diided - 0101 soue)sissy djey 2z0z/62/z1 ¥sodeq

aouejeg unoury yds ows ajeq adA)

¢20¢ 19quadeQg

pung Aq sjisodaq €2Iv0/10

19L3SI S92IAIOS ANUNWIWOY Yoeag elIAY



G abed

v1-9¢2'0¢- 000 rwieid oided - 0101 | Jayl0 zZzog/viigl wsodeqQ
vL°9zZz'0¢- 16°8G wield oljioed - 0101 soue)sissy ajey zz0oz/vl/gl Wsodeq
G9'¥8C 0¢- ozeeL'e- “Wwiald diided - 0101 29y 19l 2Z0¢/PLiZL Wsoda(
G 16692 000 rwiead dulded - 0L0L ZJBYl0 zzoz/el/zL wsodeQg
St'165°9¢- 000 rwadd ouided - 0L0L | I8Yl0 220e/ElLigl ¥sode(
Gv'1GG'0Z- 000 wiald ouided - 0L0) aouelsissy ajey zz0zZ/clL/zl WsodeQ
St'185°'9¢- 18°L6V- wsld duided - 0L0L o9y J8lBM  ZZ0Z/EL/ZL usodeq
86°650'9¢- 000 “welid dyided - 001 ZJ9yl0 Zzoz/Zlizl wusodeQ
85°650'9¢- 000 wisld dylded - 001 L 18UI0  2202Z/21L/ZL wsodeQ
86°650'9¢- 6.°68 wialdd olloed - 0L0L soue)sIssy 8yer  Zzoz/zl/zl WsodeQ
LE6V1'92- G8'Gog‘|L- wsldd oyided - 0LOL o9y JBlBM  220Z/2L/Z) ¥sodag
2s'e8l've- 000 Tuaid dyloed - 0101 ZJY0 2z0z/0l/zL MsodeQ
258 've- 000 wsld dyloed - 0101 L 1Yo Zzoz/oL/zl wsodeq
zs'e8l've- 000 “wisld oyioed - 0LOL aoue)sissy ajey  ¢z0z/0L/gl NsodeQ
2se8l've- 8LLLL- wield ayioed - 0101 o9y Jelep\  ZzZ0z/0L/ZL ¥sodeq
y€2.9've- 000 TTwisid dyioed - 0LOL ZJI9YI0 Zeoz/eo/el ysodeg
ve2L9've- 000 wsld dyided - 0101 | 1oUI0 2202/60/21 ¥sode(Q
ve'TL9've- 000 weld ouided - 0L0L aduelsissy 9By  2z0Z/60/CL Nsodeq
ve¢L9've- e o612 “wiald aiioed - 0101 09y J9lBM  2202/60/21 HsodeQ
00¢8lL'ce- 000 wiald aljioed - 0101 ZJaUl0 2Z202/80/Z1 MNsodeQ
00'z8l'ce- 000 wiald ayided - 0LOL L IBYI0  Z202/80/21 ¥sodeQ
00¢8L'cz- 19'PE Twiald dylded - 0L0L aouelsissy aley  zZ0Z/80/Z) sodaqg
L9'9Le'ze- ¥8°986- wald dljided - 001 09y J9)eM  ZZ02/80/ZL ¥sodaQg
Ll6¢z' e G.'0.06L- "Twiald duIded - 0L0L T SIUBIT ‘G2 Jejep ‘0L T USD - | # HdINI - 3N AON €2 Ad 0L  220Z/80/2) usode(Q
20'651°¢- 000 wield dyioed - 0L0L _ Z18Wy0 220z/.0/Z1 WsodaQ
co'esle- 000 rwiald dyioed - 0LOL | 84O ZZ02/L0/2L ¥sodeQ
20’651 °2- 000 wield oulded - 0L0L 9ouejsissy ajey Zz0z//0/ZL Wsodeq
20'651¢- 06°.G¢€- “wisld ouloed - 0L0L o9y el 2202//0/2) ¥soda(
ZL'108'L- 000 wisid dyloed - 0LOL 2O 2Z07/90/Z2) UsodaQg
ZL'Lo8'L- 000 Twiald ooed - 0L0L L Y0 Z202/90/21 ¥sodeq
ZLLo8'L- 000 TwRid Jiided - 0101 soue)sissy a)ey  zz0¢/90/¢1 Nsodeq
ZL1L08'L- 0S°9LL- weld aylded - 0101 09y JeleM  220Z/90/Z) Msodeq
29'v29'L- 000 weld oyloed - 0LoL ZJI9YlI0 zzoz/sorgl ysodeq
FAR 74N 000 Tuialid duided - 0LOL | JaWO Z20z/s0/zl Yysodeq
29'929°}L- ¥GLL Twsld oyioed - 0L0L adue)sIssy dley  Zz0z/S0/¢1 NsodeQ
91°'9¢9'}- 0L19¢- TwRld dulded - 0101 J9Y 181\ 2202/S0/2L ¥sodeq
aosuejeg junowy yds IVTETTY] ajeq adA)
¢Z0¢ 19quadaqg
pung Aq susodaq £2Iv0/10

JoU)SIg S991IAI9S AJIUNWILWLOY Yoeag e|IAY



g abeq

68°098°6G- 82901~ wisld duided - 0101 29y JOlBM  ¢20z/eg/el MsodsQg
L9'PSL'SG- 000 wald dylded - 0L0L ZI9Yl0 ZZ0z/zzizl wsodeq
19'¥G.L'GG- 000 Tweld oyided - 0LoL | YO 220zZ/22/zL Nsode(
19'¥GL'GG- 000 Twield ogided - 0L0L aouelsissy 8jey  ¢z0z/zz/zl Hsodeq
L9'¥G.L'GS- 96°908- “wsld dided - 0101 09y J9¥eM  Z20Z/ee/cl WsodeQ
G9'L¥6'vS- 000 T'wiRld dided - 0101 ZBYo zzoz/1zZ/zL wsodeQ
GO’ L6 VG- 000 usld dided - 0LoL _ L I8YI0  220z/LZ/zl ¥sode(Q
G9'LY6'vS- 000 “wiaid diided - 0101 aouejsissy ajey  z20g/1g/Zzl wsodeQ
G9'LY6 VG- 00°'8L¥- wisid diioed - 0L0L 09y J9)BM  2202/12/CL Msodeq
G9'62S'¥S- 000 wiald olyioed - 010l Z18yl0 220z/0Z/2L MsodeQ
G9'62S 5~ 000 “wisdd dyioed - 0101 | YO Z202/0Z/21 ¥sodeQ
69625 V5" 120" weid diided - 0LOL souejsissy ajey  ZzZ0z/0z/Zl HsodeQ
6L LS vS- §5°06Z'L- wald dyldoed - 0L0L 09y Jolep\  220¢/0¢/cl MsodeQ
v9'062'€S- 000 rwedd dylded - 0101 ZUYI0 Zzoz/el/zL Wsodesqg
¥9°062'€SG- 000 Tuiald dided - 0L0L | 18Y0 2202Z/6L/2L Ysodeq
¥9°062'€S- 18'9¢€ Twsldd diided - 0101 soue)sissy sjey 2z0z/6l/g) ¥sodeq
LG LZE'eS- LE6E9'¢E- “rliald diided - 0101 ooy J91ep\  2202/6L/ZL WsodeQ
v1°889'6Y- 000 wiald diioed - 0101 ’ ZJ9UYl0 Zzoz/8l/zlL WsodeQ
¥1°889'6Y- 000 “wielid dyided - 0L0L L JoUl0 Ze0ez/8l/zlL wsode(
718896~ vilel "wiald duided - 0L0L douelsissy aley Zgog/gl/izl WsodaQ
88'608'6- 88'L0C'vlL- wisld duided - 0101 o9y J8)1BM  2202/8L/ZL ¥sodaQ
00°809°Ge- 000 “weld olloed - 0LOL Z189Yl0  Zz0z/91/2lL wsodag
00'809°GE- 000 wald dyided - 0101 L 1oyl0  2z0z/9L/z)L WsodeQ
00°809°S¢- S.ve wsld dyided - 0LOL soue)sissy ajed gz0¢/9L/gl Nsode(
GL'Ze9'Ge- 21299 Twiald duloed - 0L0L 29y JeleM  ZZ0Z/9L/gl Wsodeg
€0°0L6'vE- 8¥°9¢¢ waid dioed - 0LOL  Z/0) swoonsay died Ayunwwo) Ajpjesedas paxoog Zz/5L/ZL  ZZ0z/SLiZL  ¥soded
16961 °GE- $8°€v0’L Weld dyed - 0L0L /L - 82/01 uonebiu| jeeng Juold Ajejeledag paxoog Zz/SL/IZL  2202/SLiZL wsodeq
Seoveiog- $9'9¢.'C ““wald oyloed - 0LOL  /0€/L1 - 82/01 uonebll| uenp ueg Ajpjesedag paxoogq Zz/5L/ZL  ZZ0z/SL/gL Wsodeq
66°996 '8¢~ 000 Twiald duioed - 0L01L Z49Yl0 Z20z/SL/zlL Wsodeg
66°996 '8¢~ 000 “rtusld Jliided - 0L0L | B0  Z202/SL/ZL Wsode(Q
66°996°8¢- G881 TTwid diioed - 0101 souejsissy ajey Zg0z/Sl/gL HsodeQ
¥8°'G86'8¢- 1ZNA TS “Ulsld diided - 0101 o9y Je)e M Z20Z/SL/ZlL WsodeQ
oL'eee've- 8¥°9¢¢- wiald ayioed - 0101 ZZ/0S/1V ) - 82/0) swoonsay xled Ayunwwod Zzoz/SL/ZL Hsodeq
29'966°¢cE- ¥8°€¥0°L- 'lsid d4loed - 0101 22/0€/L 1 - 82/0) voneb| 19ang Juoly  ZzZoz/SL/iZL Wsodeq
8.°CS6'C¢E- y9°9¢L'C- “wiadd duyioed - 0101 2z/0g/L ) - 82/0) uonebll| uenr ues  Zzoz/SL/zL ¥sodeqQ
vL-9cz'oe- 000 TTuiRld Juided - 0101 : ZJoWo 2zoz/vl/zl ¥sodeQ
aouejeg junowry yds oway ajeq adA)
2202 1dquiadeg
pun4 Aq sjisodaqg €2Iv0/10

19UISIq S92IAI9G AUNWIWOY) Yoeag elIAY



. abed

L1°66Z'veT-

L1'S62'VET- V1oL

1GGEL 6" 1G'GELBG- IS1EM [EJO L
1GGEL 66" 89°01¢- Twiald oyoed - 0L0L SO0 rav 3ONVIVA S€°129$  Z202/LE/gl sode(Q
€8'vZY'6G- 000 uweld oyided - 0101 Z JoUl0 Z20zZ/Le/2L MsodeQ
€8'vZY'6G- 000 wsld oijioed - 0LOL | J8Y0 zzZ0oz/Le/glL Msodeq
€8'vZr'66- 000 wisld dyided - 0101 aouejsissy dley zz0z/Le/gl HsodeQ
€82y '6G- 06°¢G- “"uwiald oyloed - 010} o9y I8jeM  220Z/LE/ZL Hsodaq
€¢'1LE'6G- 000 sl dyidced - 010} ZJ18YI0 ZzZoz/oe/zL NsodaQ
€C1LE'65" 000 TTuield oyioed - 0101 | JoUI0 2202/0€/2) ¥sodeQ
€e'1le'6G- 000 TTwiLdd dylded - 0101 soue)sissy ajed  Zz0z/0c/gl Nsode(
€e1LE'6S- 0G°es- “Tweld dyioed - 0LOL o9y Je)ep\  ZZ0Z/0€/Z) Ysodeq
€8°L1€'65- 000 Twsld dyioed - 0L0L ZJ48Y0 zZzoz/ez/zl usodeq
€8°21€'6G- 000 Tweld dylded - 0101 L 59O Zz0z/62Z/Z1 Wsode(
€8°L1£'6G- 0L 01 “weld ouioed - 0LOL aoue)sissy ajey Zz0z/6z/Zl WsodeQ
£€5°82¢'65- ¥8°99.- TruwRdd duided - 0L0L 09y Je)eMy  2202/62/ZL ¥sodeq
69°19G6'8G- 000 Tweld dyided - 0104 ZJ4Yl0 Zzoz/gz/zlL usodaQg
6919585~ 000 “wialid duided - 0L0L | 18UYI0  2202/82/21 usodaq
6919586~ ov'Le “Ulweld aiidoed - 0101 aoue)sissy ajey zz0e/8z/gl Nsodag
60°€8G'8G- 88'98¢°C- Twisld dylded - 0101 o9y JaYe N\ 220Z/82/2) MsodaQ
12°962'9G- 000 “'wiald oiyioed - 0101 ZJYO Zzoz/iz/zL WsodeQ
12°962'95- 000 ruldld dyided - 0101 |l IBYlO Z20z/iz/zl ¥sodeQg
12°962'96G- 98'6 “wsld oyioed - 0LOL aoue)sissy ajey zz0z//z/zL YsodeQ
L0'90€'95- 8l 'Shv- “wisid dyloed - 0101 o9y JeJeM  2z0Z/.2g/z) Hsodeq
68°098'GS- 000 Twield oyloed - 0L0L ZJ4YO geoz/ee/el WsodeQg
68°098'GG- 000 TTlweld Jled - L0l |l JolO0 Zzoz/ez/zL ¥sodeq
68°098'6G- 000 TTwiBldd ayided - 0101 douelsissy deY Zzoz/ez/gl WsodeQ

asuejeg Junowly yds oW\ aleq adA}

2202 1oquiadaq

pund Aq sjsodaqg £2I0/10

JoU3SI1g S99IAI9S AJUunwiwo) yoeag ejIAy



L abed

L¥'S26'9 S TAVA 2 aouUBUBJUIBI - ZHG9 Jaqwedaq 900 ZZ/GL/ZL 99/62 AUl edineg Buluepies zaied  06EE  2202/LZ/2) %o8Yy9
91°8/8'9 9z'8l 20Y10 ‘solddng - €119 sadojeaua B sg60. uozewy zzoz/Lerel piet=lig}
06'658'9 Zre uswiAed esey - 0Z1LS S99} 99 JueyoIBW yosjuswAed zz0z/0z1Z) 3o8YD
87°968'9 651 “'uswAed eseys - 0Z1LS $99} 29 JUBYOIOW yosjuewded zz0z/6LiZL %oayo
68'v58'9 0Z'9 “"uswihed eseyd - 0zZLS S99} 09 JueyoIeW yosjuswAed zz0ZISLIZL %o8yo
69'8¥8'9 z0zlL diyg g ebeisod - Zyl9 T ZZ/PLiZL €611 AUl 678 JoQuINN Jswolsny | ‘salbojouyds) saess)  98e€  ZZ0T/SLIZL %o8yQ
29'9/9'9 ZLve "M Pd 00 S¥3d - 9525 ZZISLITL - LiZL suy ey seakoldwig olgnd 143 ZzozmwLizi %o8yo
G5 Zr9'9 0,02 Alnger] s¥3d - 0522 ZZISLIZL - LiZL wsuy ey sesfoldwig olgnd 143 Z202mL/2) %o8yo
G8'LOY'9 0062 "M Pd 00 SY3d - 9526 TTIOS/LL - 9L/LL isuy  “aey seskodwg lgnd 143  zzozwiizl o8yo
G8'2.€£9 08°€02 Aljger] sy¥3d - 0522 ZT/0E/LL - 9L/LL sy aey seskoidwz olignd 143 2Z0TUVLIZL patlite}
GE'69L°9 ¥v'8¢ "M Pd 00 S¥3d - 952G ZZISLILL - LiLL asuy ey seakojdwiz dllgnd 143 Z202i7LiZL %9840
L6°0EL‘9 or'eLe Ayger] sy3d - 0sze ZZISLILL - L/LL asuy  aney seshojdwig aigngd 143 zzozwiizL %o8yD
18'868°G v0'€ “"udwAed asey - 0Z1LS $89) 00 Jueyosew yosjuswihed zzozivLiel pl=ITe)
11'S68'S £9'1 “uswAhed esey) - 0Z1LS S99} 09 Jueydsew yosjuaswAed zeozivLizL 3o8uo
¥1'va8's 00°€29°1 upny Bununoooy - €019 2202 1dag Buunp sad1A1es IpNy 2202 Ad dT7'umoig g yepaq  ¥8EE  ¢20Z/vLigL »o8y9
PLL8LY 00°0S9'L "t 10geT JoBNJUOD - 0SS A - YIOZ AON S82IAIeS IO J0geT 10BU0D  saleidossy g uuewsbed  glee  Z20givL/Z) 3o8yo
rL'LES'T 002 “"uswiAed eseyg - 0Z1LS $88} 99 JUBYOJOW yosjuswied zz0z/ELiz) o8y
¥1'625°C 192 "uswihed eseyd - 0ZLS $99} 99 JUBYOJOW yosjuewAed 220Z12L12) %08y
£6'925'C 000V "IN % "dey "dib3 - $ZG9 saieday Jo)ndwoo sieindwo) 23] 8D 143 Z2oz/oLizL %o8yD
£6'981'C 0Z'LE “diyg @ abejsod - Zy19 20IMI8G [BI1SOd ‘SN zz0e/60/z1 o8yo
££'651'2 g6’V “"uswAed eseyy - 0Z1LS S99} 09 JuBYOIsW yosjuswihed 2202/80/21 3o8yo
8€'05+'2 z0'L “"uswAhed aseyg - 0Z1LS $98} 00 JueyoIBW yosjuswihed 220270121 %08yD
9L'6V1'2 00°02 soueuUBUIBY - ZH59 1sed uspzaig 143 2202/20/21 »o8yo
9€'6.€'C Z.'GEL " J0qeT Joenuog - G059 abieyoing |an4 G1pzzed  ebeuely eounosey pinld /€€ 2202/L0/21 pklite}
voevz'e 00'ELL 8oyjO ‘saddng - €419 sellddng ‘00 Bulues|) aupseod  9/€€  2202/L0/Z) 3o8yd
9012 00'5C aduBUBUIRY - ZPS9 "8 pue pues ‘seAesT Jo dn ues|) Jousixg ‘00 Buwes|] auliseo)  9/e€€  2202/L0/2L %o8yo
¥9'601°Z 00°G91L soueusjuley - ZPS9  (220Z AON) 8GLE AUl @ouBUSUIE 91O ‘0D Bujues|p suliseod  9/€€  2202/.0/2) %o8y9
9°016°L 00°00€ asueuBUIRY - ZHS9 ublS BjIAY Z2/€2/LL 899 ‘AUl eoleg Bulusplesy zaied  pLEE  2202/L0/C) %o8Y9
9 0v9°L 0026 |eba - GEL9 22/82/LL 9¥100Z "AU] LOO00-GZPYZ "8Il ] ewled B [91S0d ‘99ld  LIEE  ZZOZ/LO/Z) %08y
¥9'8¥G'L 66°2€€ PNOJQ 8010AU| - QLS $99) JUBYOIBW PNOJD BI0AU| PNOJO80i0AU| 2202/90/2) %08y
G9°0LZ'L Z8'LL “uswhed eseyd - 0ZLS $83) 00 JUBYOIOW yosjuswied 2202/90/21L %o8yD
€8'861°L 0021 xewy - 011 Xxawy “"osiq ssaidx3 uesuswy 2202/50/2} iek=1TTo)
£8'981°L OL'LL “"uswAed eseyy - 0Z1LS S99} 09 jueydsow yosuswAed zz0z/s0/21L %o8yD
€°621°L L9°ZY 20440 ‘saddng - €19 se|de)g 2z0z/s0/zL pei:llle)
zZLeeL’lL 18'691 dng Bunessdo - 0559 “'sAg sssuisng soluone) 143 Z202/50/Z1 }28UD
GZ'196 SZ' Ly soueusjuiB - ZHS9 S80IAISS JBqUIBAON Z2/SL/LL 96+62 'AU|  8dlneg Buluepies) zalad  J9€€  220Z/S0/21L »o8y9
00°026 00°00Z a)SgaM - 0219 suljwesns gsogy Alujuow  “iQ / woo'suljwesnSlen 143 Zzoz/zoiel Pl TP i)
00'02L 00°0vZ Bununoooy - ZoL9 Buideaxjoog zz/0g/LL  Buidesyyoog albuga pIN  S98€  ZZ0Z/LO/Z) %o8yD
00°08% 00°0tZ Bununodoy - Zo1L9 Buidesyyood zz/cz/LL  Buidesyoog oibug BPYIN  S9EE€  2202/L0/Z) ¥o8yo
00°0vC 00°0¥2 Bununoooy - ZoL9 Buidesyyood 06L€ "Aul g2/9L/LL  Duidesyyoog oBug BIN  G9EE  ZZ0Z/L0/ZL %98yQ
uluipy \ _m._wr_OO
aoueleg Junowy JUNO2DY IVTET] awenN wnpn ajeq adA}
ZZ0Z 1equiadaqg
SJUNOJIY/M pun4 Aq S)}o9YH £2/¥0/10

191381 S921AI88 AJUnwwos yseag ejIAyY



Z abey

G/'Z¥9'€9  00'S2Z Ul JojeIsuUSD) - 0EGY  “TTUONBIS Y -- JojeIausS) Bunsal yZy8y AUl | ‘@snoylemod sInues  GREE  ZZ0T/SLIE! 308y
GLILP'E9  00°0LY g rdey 'dinb3 - 2269  dLMM 1A yoeed BIAY 0582 600009 ‘AUl Bulquinid sioooq uielq  €8€€  220Z/vLIZ)L %o8y9
Gl /¥6'29  08°9¥Z0l uued d1MM - BSyg8  zes # AUl LLZLLE #199f0id dLMM HaW uouued  Zgee  220T/vLIZL 3oayo
S6°004'2¢ 00°0S5°C " JogeT Joenuod - L0S9 lueg JogeT JoeJjU0D  sdjelossy g uuewsbeH /g€ ZZ0Z/vLIZL %o8yo
G6'0SL'0G  00°80¥'9L sapN - 0659 220204194AS0gy equinN Jooy Aseyues Alunog yinos  g2e€ Z2202/7LIZL %o8yD
G6'ZPL'EE  YISL9°L g 'dey 'dinb3 - Zzge  INQ ||eD wiuely j9ART UbiH Juanyul gGezZM  Tebeuely aounosey pinild LE8€ 2202/.0/21 %o8yo
L2212 £9'8p9'E g "dey dinb3 - zzG69 Buiues|d uoneis Y LGeZZM  ebeuepy sounosey pinid /€€ 2202/20/2} o8yo
89'8/¥'8Z  00'SZlL g day dinb3 - 2259 uojeulpioog uolsuedx3 Jueld 6GZZL obeuep eoinosey pinly  22E€  2202/.0/2) %o9YD
89°€GE'8Z  1L0'S6 g 'dey "dinb3 - Zzzgg9  “Uignl juonoadsul seysinBunxg ea4 g pggy  rabeuey eounosey pinld  2E€ 2202/20/2) %0840
19'862'82  9v'€09'9L " 10geT] JOBJUOY - G059 22/212) SLvezed ebeuepy soinosey pinl4  L/E€  2202/L0/C) pel:Ilie)
LZ°6G9°LL  00'6PL'Y sisa| qet - 0959 ZZ/LIZL TS6S Wswalels  Tronfleuy 1seo) suoleqy  GJEE 2202/20/2L %o8yd
LZ2'906°9 GZ'668°L “ellem dLMM - PSHEZS 22/22/LL Z100-S120 #198l0id €/6/G "AU| 'ou| ‘dnoio) aoellep  £/€€  2202/L0/2L %o8y9
96°900'G 6.9 dng Bunesado - 0659 ZZ/SLILL S228.L# "AU| 617916 Jawoisn) joogenig ySN  69€E  2202/L0/2L o8y
L1298y 0,°06Z°L s[esiwayy - €059 ZZ/LiZ) Z1Loveel Idg "ou| ‘oyloed Beuuslg  89e€  Z2202/20/2) ¥o8y9
¥ 110 1£°106 s[esjwayd - €089 ZeiveiLL 1561621 1dg "ou| ‘oyioed Beyuuslg  89gE  2202/.0/2) ¥o8yQ
0L'¥91'2 AU s|eolwayd - £0G9 2ZiEN )L SPyL82L Idg 'ouj ‘olioed Beluuslg  g9ge  ZZ0Z/L0/2) o8yo
89'622'L Z9'she samIN - 0659 J8ysdwing pA Z LGEV0LE-0ZLY JequinN ooy - Auejues Ajunod yinos 143 2202/90/Z1 ¥o8yd
90'¥88 ¥1'889 sjealwsyg - €069 ZZ/LLILY £8€062 I1d9 "ou| ‘ojioed Beyuuslg  99ge  2202/S0/21 pel-llie)
26'G61 26'G61 "ju| / duoydale] - G859 S 706 91¥6-G65 S08 # Jooe 191V 143 2202/10/2) 3}93Y9

Aiejlueg

041201 04°120°L syb1 [ejo L
0/'120'L 90°8SY - 0659 £-90959/96/S #2908 sjybi 1S juoi4 3%9d 143 zzoz/szizl o8y
¥9°€£95 R 44 senInn - 0659 €-7869/60690 # 1008 S)ybI umo | 3%9d 143 2202/20/2) 3o8yn
0gLLL 0gZLL sanN - 0659 0-Z29€SS 12666 # 1008 s)ybi] Auojo) 3%9d 143 2Z202/20/2) v_mmco

sybn

9/'Z1€'8 9/°21£'8 ulwpy / [e1duss [ejo |
9/.°Z1€'8 00'6S1 "W g "dey ~dib3 - 259 sJiedas Jeyndwiod siendwo) 99 8D LAV ATA] }o8yQ
9/°¢€GlL'‘g 0562 "W g day "dib3 - 259 siiedas Jsyndwoo siendwo 209 8D TAANATA) 393Y9
9Z'v.0'8 626l 8oYJO ‘salddng - €719 ¥081269-GS6/E9L-PLL # uozewy 2202/82/21 %o8yo
16'¥50'8 80°'L “"uswAhed aseyy - 0Z1LS $89) 00 Jueyosow yosswAhed 2202/82/121 3o3yd
69°€50'8 €Z°cLL “ruswAhed aseys - 0Z1LS $99) 90 Jueyosow yosjuawAied AN TAIXALA }o8yd
99°0¥6'2 9ze ushed esey - 0Z1LG $99) 99 Jueyossw yosjuawAied AN TAYXALA) %98Y9
0V'8€6°L G6°62¢ "jul / suoydala] - 6869 1 /GEE00860015728 "# 100V wnuosedg 143 zzoz/szizl 3o9yn
G¥'802°L 66°80¢ sanN - 0659 JS sin ues 004 3%9d 143 zzoz/ezizl %o9Yyo
ov'66Y'L 69'€ “"uswihed eseys - 0ZLS $99) 29 JuByOIOW yosjuswAhed zeoz/LeeL %o8yo
11°G6Y'L 9¢£°06 uswhed eseyd - 0ZLS $99) 20 JueyoIOW yosuswAied ze0z/Lziel o8y
LP'Sovy'L 00°0%¢ Bunyunoooy - 2019 Buideayyoog zz/pL/zl Buidesyyoog elbug N Z6EE  2202/L2/2) $o8Yyd
LP'eoL's 00°0t2 Bununosoy - Z01L9 Buideayyoog 06LE ‘AUl Z2/2/ZL  Buideaypjoog s|bug DPIN  Z6ES  2202/12/Z) pie=lle]

asuejeg Junoury JUNnoo2Yy OwalN awepN wnn ajeq adA |

T20T 19quiedeq

SJUNO2IY/M pun4 Ag s)o9y9 £21¥0/10

19L1JS1@ S921AIG AjUNWIWo) yoeag eIy



¢ abeq

SIZL'PLL  SLVZL'VLL V10l
L2°18L'98  12181'98 Jeje M\ [eyo L
12°18L'98  GT'0£Z samN - 0659 'Y Bulpueeaed /L/1L 399d 143 zzoezszizl 3o8Y9
o9v’LG6'G8 7S 'S6Y punjay - 0666 Y uonounjely 8Jemyos IS1O|N JeeNS ISl T UOHRORBA SIBISIS UBASS  GBEE  2202/22/Z) 3o8y9
¥6'sev'e8  9t'gel'ElL zado - 2089 JuswiAed [euld (Zy6#) 22/L20Z A4 SHOM 2lland Aluno) OIS 08EE  2202/SLiZ1 piille)
8y /LLLL  9vToL'Y zadoT- Z089 U6#) T# USW(eISU] "AU| "WIBld €2/2202 A4 SHMOM olignd Alunod O1S  08€E  220Z/SLIZL %o8y9
2065699  00°0S0°L " JOQET JoRJUOD - 2059 Jeyepn JogeT oenuo  sejepossy g uuewsbeH  §/E€  2Z202/VLIZL o8yo
20°606'G9  00°00. "IN % "dey ~dib3 . $g59 X4 8poD welsAg J9)soog ¢GiZZM Cebeuey saunosey piINl4 2ZE8€ 220Z/L0/2)L %o8yo
20'602'69  61°G.S “dng BupesadQ - 0669  wWelsAg Jejepn senddng BunessdQ 9/vzgy  ebeue sounosay pinid /€€ 2202/10/2) o8yn
€2°629'v9  Z8'65S'S " 10geT 19BIUOD - G0G9 T2/212) GlyZTed ebeuepy soinosey pinid  L/E€  Z202/L0/Z) o8y
LP'690°'6S  88°6EL LY zadoT - 2089 W2® O SMomaland Awno) OIS Z.E€  2202/.0/ZL 3o8yD
€5°628'LL  LELLELL zado - 2089 “enuuy lWeg Jsjep zedo  80IAIeS 1geQ  SMIOM liANd AUnoD O1S ZLEE  2202/L0/2) %o8y9
oLz Lzl dng Bunesedo - 0659 selddng BunessdQ ZzZ/0L/Z) 08€9ZL 199V alempleH 90y SIBUIN  O/EE  220Z/.0/Z) $o8Yyo
) 19)Jepi
86°G0Z'6.  849°S0Z'6. Aejiueg [ejo)
86°60Z'6.  88'96l "ju| / duoydafe] - G859 G ¥06 9L ¥6-G6S S08 # 1008 191V 143 zZzoz/ocizL 3o9Y9
0.°800'6. 8LPEL'T salilN - 0659 duind 18 uelq ueg g pig 3%9d 143 zzoziszizL 308Y9
Z5'vL2'9.  88vlL sauN - 0659 Z-8€2ZEYREEY #1008 uoneIs Y 399d 143 zzoziseizy %98UD
$9'660'9.  O'€ES punysy - 0666 HOS /IS19 1921IS 1SN GEY Z/VOL0# 100y T UOHBOBA SI9)SIS UBASS  GBEE  Z20E8/Ze/Tl) Wo8yo
$2°995'G/,  $8'8S ""juj / suoydafe] - G859 JouIslu| G880 X # 1008 191V 143 zeoez/izieL 3o84D
6€° 205G,  00°€St'S S99 @ SHWIdd - GGG9  Opul LOYELZ0-AM # "AUl €2/0€/9 - 22/10/L pleog Jejepm @1elS  pBES  2202/1L2/2) peLIlie)
B6E¥S0'Z.  00°CEV'V S994 @ SHWIAd - GGG9 T IVNNNY €2°0€9-22°L°2 L08€L20 - AM pieog Jejlep @1e)S  €6€E  220Z/L2/E) Hoayd
6€'229'/9  19°G/8 s[eawayd - €059 ZZ/SLIZL L61.621d9 'ouj ‘oyloed Beluuslg  LBEE  2202/LZ/ZL %oy
Z2.L9%1.'99 000 S99 B SHUdd - GGG " TVNNNY €2°0€'9 -22'L°L 8259610 - AM pleog Jejep o1e1S  B8EE  2202/02/2L ¥o8yo
2.9%2'99 000 $994 % SHWISd - GGG9  “"ZZOLOSSE Pl ANIOERS LOPELZO-AM # AU pleod i9)ep 81R1S  88EE  220T/6L/2L %oayo
ZL972'99 000 $994 @ SHuWIed - G669 " IWNNNY 2Z/8/2L - LZ'L 'L L08€120 - M pleog Jojepy o1e1S  £8EE  Z202/6L/2) ¥o8yQ
2L9vL'99 €T EevLe BuypueH spijos - 0859 L1169 "AU| Z2/6/) | Bulipuey spijos "ou| ‘s,peadg zzoz/sLizl o8yo
67'€09'v9  0S€e U] / suoydala | - G869 Z819162.2.8T # 100e 191V 143 Zz20z/S1igh %o8YD
66°6.5'Y9  vZZLL s[eajway) - €069 2z/8/Z) 01562149 "ou| ‘ojioed Bejuualg  98ee  2202/SL/C) 3o8yd
G/'/98'€9 00522 Ul J0JeIauds) - 0£G9 dLMM -lojesauas) Bunss) gzygy "AUl | ‘8Snoylamod sinTues  6eee  zz0zg/SLigl 3oayD
aouejeg junowy junosay oW\ awepN wnpN ajeq adA)
2202 1aquisdaq
SJUNOIIY/M pun4 Aq s)oay9H €2/70/10

IPUISIg S821AIeg AJUNWIWO) Yyorag BlIAY



FLUID RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

OPERATIONS . MAINTENANCE . MECHANICAL
2385 Precision Drive
Arroyo Grande, CA 93420

Phone # 805.597.7100 Fax #

To:

Avila Beach Community Services District
P.0. Box 309

100 San Luis Street

Avila Beach, CA 93424

Transaction

Statement

Date

1/3/23

805.597.7171

California Certified Small Business #1120142

Amount Due

Amount Enc.

$109,089.15

Amount

Balance

12/31/22

12/23/22

12/22/22

12/23/22

12/29/22

12/28/22

12/28/22

CURRENT

109,089.15

348F11.001 Monthly OPS/Maint-
INV #F22581. Orig. Amount $22,319.88.

348F11001 Monthly OPS/Maint:348FW11001
Water:348AW17001 Add Services water-
INV #A22549, Orig. Amount $581.89.

348F11001 Monthly OPS/Maint:348FWW11001
Wastewater:348AWW17002 Add Services Wastewater-
INV #A22527. Orig. Amount $909.16.

348TWW21001 Plant Expansion Coordination-
INV #T22540. Orig. Amount $1,250.00.

W22404 Cloacina Plant Installation:W22404P1 Plant
Installation-
INV #W22404P1-P2, Orig. Amount $82,247.36.-

W22487 Influent Pump #1 High Level Alarm-
INV #W22487. Orig. Amount $1,393.64.

W22505 Pump #1. Issues-
INV #W22505. Orig. Amount $387.22,

31-60 DAYS PAST
DUE

1-30 DAYS PAST
DUE

61-90 DAYS PAST
DUE

22,319.88

581.89

909.16

1,250.00

82,247.36

1,393.64

387.22

OVER 90 DAYS
PAST DUE

22,319.88

22,901.77

23,810.93

25,060.93

107,308.29

108,701.93

109,089.15

Amount Due

$109,089.15







AVILA BEACH

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA. 93424

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors =y
FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Manager (| // e
DATE: January 10, 2023

SUBJECT:  General Manager/District Engineer Report

Zone 3 Advisorv Committee and State Water Subcontractors Advisory Committee

The Zone 3 Technical Advisory Committee last met on December 14, 2022. The agenda packet for the December
14" meeting is included as an attachment. As of this writing (January 2, 2023), the Lopez reservoir is at 25.0 % of
capacity with 12,250 AF in storage. We started the month of December with approximately 10,837 AF in
storage. Rain accumulation at the Lake measuring station since July 1, 2022, is 16.0 inches. The December
storms added approximately 10 inches of rain and added approximately 1,400 AF of water to the lake’s storage.
We are forecasted to receive significant additional rain in early January. I will provide an update of the lake
storage levels at the Board meeting.

Wastewater Treatment Plant Project Status Report

During the month of December the Hartzell Construction crew and subcontractors completed the grading and
paving at the WWTP and the repair to shoulder of Avila Beach Drive in front of the WWTP. The major
milestones for January 2023 include finishing up the electrical conduit and wire pulls; installation of new fencing
along Avila Beach Drive and installing a new gate on the southern driveway to the WWTP. Delivery of the
electrical switchgear components and the back-up generator remain as the critical components for completion of
the project. The vendors have advised us that the delivery dates have moved up a few weeks. They expect the
equipment to be delivered starting in late January through early February. We are optimistic that the project will
be ready for Commissioning and start-up in late March and fully operational by late April to early May.

Consider Installing an Automated Water Meter Read System
Over.the past 5 — 10 years staff has discussed the benefits of installing an automated water meter reading (AMR)

system. Currently the District Operations and Maintenance Contract with Fluid Resource Management includes
FRM staff physically reading the water meters monthly and recording the data via a handheld tablet that is then
synchronized with the District billing software. Any errors or data inconsistencies must be re-read by FRM staff
prior to running the utility bills. The meter reading process takes FRM approximately 8 — 10 hours per month to
complete.

The benefits of installing an AMR system include but are not limited to: improving the accuracy and reducing the
errors of manually reading the meters; reducing the time it takes to read the meters and upload the data to the
billing software; and staff and customers can better detect leaks in their systems. Staff estimates the cost to
purchase the equipment and install approximately 325 new AMR meters will be approximately $150,000.

With the Board’s concurrence, staff recommends that we continue to work with our meter vendor to develop a
detailed scope of work and have the vendor provide the District a firm quote for the project. Staff will bring that
project back for Board consideration at a future meeting, within the next 2 — 3 months.



ZONE 3

TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE

Wednesday December 14, 2022
9:00 - 11:00 am

Agenda

Phone line: +1 (646) 749-3122
Access Code: 617-462-197

OR

Webinar: https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/617462197

. Announcements

All

. General Operations and Water Report

¢ Summary Notes — None

e Monthly Operations Report — November
e Agency Stored Water — November

» Lopez Storage Projections — November

David

. Current Reservoir Conditions

Kyle (Verbal)

. Capital' Projects Update

David

. Monthly Operations Report Format

David

DO A W

.LRRP

e 2018 Amendment — Was never adopted

David

. Cloud Seeding

e Recent Storms

David

8. Conservation Outreach

David

. Future Agenda items?

s Project Updates
o HCP/Instream Studies

e Zone 3 Boundary Change

All

Attachments:

Lopez Monthly Operations Report — November
Agency Stored Water

Lopez Storage Projections Chart — November
Capital Projects Update

Example Monthly Operations Report

2018 LRRP Amended and Restated

TmMooOw»

Happy Holidays!
Next Meeting Date: January 11,

»

22



I fo | a8oq

unpy

:Aq popurad jiodxy

“A|[enuue pajussaid aq {1 s3850] uonelodeaq] AV 78 6$9 Sem $9550[ UOTIRIOdRAD SNUIUI IJeA) 913 PRI0IS PRIEINO[ED 3L [ZOT | € J2qUIaa(t UQ
‘uonezZLIAlORIRYoRL 12jeM G107 ‘] Alenum( sy 03 3o8q Sunep sasso] uoneiodBAz SNUIW 1ajem jelS PoIolg Y] papuasaid Auno) 3y *zzoz [udy uQ (¢

"UOHONPaL %07 ©

dal umoys

" Sy w1 pajeuBisap sk e | 10AQ KL1eD),, A|[Broe sI umoys Jajem sajding(e

1 341 Jo 12831 I 000°01 Y1 Buyoeal jo uoyedisnue ut (2zoz jiudy of 2A19E0N1) UOONPIT

JUIWIRIIUS %407 & PISIOPUS DY ZZ0T ‘1T AIN[ UQ (dd]) ue|d 2suodsay 11oA1asay Mo Yy} 1apun pajesade mou sie saueAlp( 1918 zado (7

‘Yiuou 1y afiesn SHPURLD 0A0LIY WOY PRGNS Sem JY 8 [ PUB YIuow siy) a3esn Jojem
5,0U899() 0} POPPE SEM 1521 ucAUe)) 0} PAIRAIP IV 811 JO [10) ' INO WIN] BUPT S,2PUELD 0A0LIy BlA 15210 uohure)) o} sdjem parjddns ouesa() (|

sjuRUnIoY)

‘[iejutes Joj uasaid 0) A{np pue ‘sataaifep zodoT 10§ Jussard o) [udy ‘1ajesm ajelg 10 Jussaid o) Alenuef S1 ,2)e(] 0) Jea K,

[ B1mues @ z1vsomaa masoo o

22 AON 22,300 ¥Z.deg zz,Bny Zz.nr Zzz,unr gz, Aew 2z,.idy 2T, MW 7Z,q8d ZT, uer

oanig ‘(g :Aq padaud vy

2207 ‘¢ daquaca] Avpuopy

J-2u08 O£ (‘g SI PRI 93RS 1994 SIGND 9 ‘£ 10 SUO[[ed (G8 ‘STE = 100) 3108 AUQ "193J-31d8 UL a8 SALIBAI[I(] BION

000 0 (109 2108} aBeq|1ds|

18971 1081 (1eaky1a9) 219% QOTH) 25T3[OY Emu:mcioo_

(433 Lo __m.«_.:ax_

%0'TT 1n % 0£801 (109] 2138 (0Z61 12 [[Nf) 9Be101g]
PI'S9- (4233) 3ouasIq £TLSY (199} L£'TTS 1° [jj) UOUBAS|T 3¢
e[ 0) 183X | YIUOR SIY], suonedQ we( zade]

—N—<mul 8d0Jaso008omave

TT0T “12quIsAoN
Hoday] suonjerdd(y A[YIUO - 193l01J Zado ] - ¢ duUo7

LIS I8kA\ PUB [O[U0)) poo[] Ajuno)) odsiqQ s ueg

0 | ;
it 08 g * 03 -4
: 7 oo 3
i i & 00} o &
— — 081 (1]
obes() Jajep 9)R)S Juaseid 0} Aenuepr abesn Je1ep snjding+jusweppug zedo Jussesd o) udy
8L°L08 Jaiepy 91615 Pa10IG YIROR sy, 8Z6 I31R M) ARG PRIOIS PUORN IS8T —
8100 00°0761  |%c'08 poTLLL | TTOLI- 0 wbs | zzozt | 907z J[%s1ve | peeliz |%oo | so0  [wsss | vesniz f{woo | oo fwer |esecz| ezzo | 00veesz | o0'ssst | vzos [1EIOL
78T %£'29 PLYL %b'T 78'C ozl Ol [3NATI UBS
LETI %€ 16 99°L8 %9'L £€°L 96 Jl%s €l €515 |%00 000 |%bez | £528 ||%00 000 |%9'T $0'S 9zv | oo'oez | ooosz | 961 1 VSO
86921 %156 16'8L11 %9'S 000L | ovZl M%T¥l | 9T0ST |%00 000 |%1'SE | 9T0sT f|%00 000 |%0'8 8695 | 9Ll | oo'svol | 00'8KOL | 9ELL Yaeag] owstq
6'99 %S9 | 9I'LZs [%00 000 |%t'z8 | 91Les flwo0 000 |%s01 | 0699 | +¥8 0070z | 00'v0z | ope | UOEBOH JOAOIL)
LOOV % LS _ £L°0EY e's | Loop 05 fl%00 000 |%00 000 %00 000 J1%00 000|900 000 L19 00'ste | oosie | vave S oued()
F0'I1S1 %667 | 6648Z1 %00 000 |%loL | 667871 J|%00 000 |%T8 |voist| visz | oozee | 00zhe | zest | SPUBID OAOLIY]
WUO SYL | sanmealagg ssanboy afe101g | saumnrp( _”o__wou 1sonbay % afesn Yo a8es) Yo agesn) Yo ofes) % adesn) | iorepm parepacg
. BRARq IMS [enuuy Jo o ofesn ursueyy| dms 09 | 9%espy | enuuy felol, snjding JUETEN TS snjding yuswapnuyg | 319BIIBAY| pojsonbay | 31BM J10)0ea3U0)
ANEMIEI0L Juasald o3 Arenuef Yuo ST Juesalg o3 judy YIUO SIYL, [0 | smding | snpdmg | pug
SALIDAIR(] JAEAN NEIS SAIIANR( Je A Zador] _



00 00 Y/N Y/N|0'0 V/N V/IN ojjanbiy ueg
L'vee L'8%L LA S'0¢c 098 00 98 Z2L-vSID
71901 Vivl G'sg 8'208 ovLe 00 rLE yoseag owsid
0°€Le 00 0'02L 0'024 Q€L 069 8¢ yoeag 18A019)
L'6LE AR 00 AR 0°/0L 00 201 asd oueadQ
OvLL 00 01902 0'L902 QvLL ¥'ce 208 dpueic) oholiy
220z-1202 220z ‘L Indy Aq 22021202 AM Z202-120Z AM| 2202 ‘) IMdy Ad| 2202-1202 AM 22021202 AM
lajepn pasnup) [e10] |@ouejeq Juswapnul| pesn Juswapnul| ejqejieAy Juswapnul| asuejeg snjding| pesn snjding| sjqepeay sniding

[4v] 133em paioys




000

00'¢

00y

009

008

000t

00ct

0ot

*|[ejujed payaipasd Mof Jo syjuow Juunp tdess

(4eaul]) 3y3 mojaq |jgy [m ydeso uoppefoiq a8e10ys (aABIU03) 9y | “[adeys U] aAEIUCD] UOISSSaIBa. [ejwoudjod € uo paseq 5| [spoj LoRI#ou eBRI0lS YL

'Pajeanyes §) (10 8Y3 Uaym uoseas Auje: ayy Buinp uexy syjuow Aip 3y} Buiinp mojjut s3] SINPOLd (|| SWLOISUIEY '[PPOW 34 O3 PaIDIIR) PUE SUOIIPUOD {10S JUBPIAJUE AQ PARIaLE SI MOJjU]

=
N RN
TLEELREREE8L8LE3
/////////////
NN N N DN N N N N MDD NN
o O O O 0O O 0O © 0D O O o O
N N NN NN DD NN D NN
P obhoA R B W W W W W W W
- -
e T 1T

11§
o

vzoz/L/e

e s e > e =0 oo e e s

10013y} earaBueiBuo) woly pauleiqo (|jules payipa.d ay) U0 Juapuadap s) :MOjjUf pAYIPaLd
solsan||ap Ajyiuow aBeane Tz0Z-DT0Z U0 paseq sy :afesp Aoually

$aseajay wealsumoq + aBesn Auady = moying

MOINQ - #ojju| + 38RIDIS JUBLINT = 3Fe10)S L10AIASIY

saoN
aleq
' [t e = e =

LELRL R L LUV IJQgLeser R0 dausone
e e e el e e e e T e O e e e e e e Sy
Pl e e S R e e s e s e s e e e e e s e s s e e e e
N RN R NN RN NN RN NN RN RN NN NNNRNNNNN
O 0 00 O OO0 OC 0O 0 0 0 0 O 00 O OO0 OO0 O oo o oo oo o
NN RN R RN RNNNRNRNN NN N RNRNDNNNRNONN NN DR
W W W W WM NN NNRN RN NRDRONRRB |2 B B B 2 B3 3 e

: R ey - 0

0 _ "_._.S.ONPJIO F _ SOMRE N L 1l
o - e - | - = - mg - | — CN Oﬂ' jvq b B s 2
860 : ' i
f mﬁ.WDO
) — —T 000S
¥8'1 0T s
¥Z'C £0°C N
i 8€C
8
86'C [
T D v A — o e -
7T [ 0000T
geoz/eT/t

000sT

0000¢
£E°L

|00d WNWIUIA == o=

4V 00007 == ==

— = - 000S¢
= =  0000€
- + 000SE
4V 000°0T == == (Uley ON} uond3f0.1d 38101 uorpafoid a8e.01s i
95015 |eNdY uonedinalg paidipald mmm— uonenddald (enOy
- - — — - 0000%

NOILJ3(0Odd 31DVHOLS HIOAYIS3IY 23401

(4v) s8eio1s




ZONE 3 Lopez Project

San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District

TO: Zone 3 Technical Advisory Committee
FROM: David Spiegel, PE
DATE: December 14, 2022

SUBJECT: Zone 3 Projects Update
Project Updates:

o Tesla Battery Storage
o Working on a date with PGE to upgrade infrastructure when we have a
few clear days. PGE states the work can’t be done in inclement weather

o Budget —Free

o Spillway Assessment and Investigation (No Change)

o Consultant is preparing response to DSOD workplan comments. Draft
response expected by 9/16/22.
o Remainder of project ~ minimum of $300,000

e Geotechnical Testing & Seismic Alternatives Study of Terminal Reservoir Dam
o Final workplan under GEI review.
o Budget ~$500,000

o Lopez WTP Safety Upgrades (Cancellin
o Staff are looking into additional consultants to do a lifeline system within
the membrane building.
o Multiple consultants have reviewed the project, but none have quoted the
project.
o Budget ~$53,000

e Cathodic Protection Repair Project
o Board Date to Approve Bid Advertisement 1/10/2023

o Advertisement Date 1/12/2023
o Bid Opening Date 2/2/2023 @ 3pm.
o Budget ~$449,933

o Eaquipment Storage Building (Cancelling)
o Budget ~$90,000

e CO2 Injection System
o Bid Opening was 12/8/2022

o Budget ~$256,000



ZONE 3 Lopez Project

San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District

¢ Sludge Bed Curtain Wall Rehabilitation (No Change)
o ~$50,000 per initial quote

¢ Chlorine Dioxide Bulk Storage Tank
o Tank was delivered 12/7/2022
o Budget ~$47,309.51

Completed Projects
¢ Lopez Water Treatment Plant Rack 1 Membrane Replacement



0 {3294 2138 oBe()|dg]
1260 1R eS|
3 (Bl)01s5] 01948 zad0)
g {1eah £ 1233 3108 pOZY| SoseapY WL ISUMOQ

“Ajfenuue pajuasaid aq ||[M sass0| UO[IRIOdBAT "W Z8'659 SeM 35S0 UopeIodeA Slilw

1212 RIS PAIOIS PRRINIIED DI TZ0Z 1€ +GMIIIQ UD “UOREZLIIEIEYID 191eMm STOZ ‘T Aleniuerauyj 0} 1peq Buep sassof LONRIOdeAS SIULL Ja1eM 31215 P2101S 3Y1 Pauasaid Auno) 341 ZZ0Z dy UD (¢

*d4YT Y1 U] paleuB|sap se 1a1em ,J3A0 AlIeD, AHENIIE 5 uMOYs Ja1em snidIng(c|

“UQIINPR KO B 1U3SIdI1 UMOLS SWAWSINI d¥HT 24} Jo SEBI1L 1w 000'0T

aup Buiyaeas jo us (2207 pdv 0 uopanpas %02 © PISIOPUS DV ZZOZ ‘TZ AT UO “{d4yHT) Uejd 25uods3y 110A59Y MOT 34 JIPUN PR1eIado MOU Bl SILIaARQ JIeM 22d0 (7]
sL0% WLYM NS TIYOULS LHULSIT TIEVIIYAY SHINOW INIHHMD
TZ0Z- 39VHOLS NI IONVHD “Huous iy aBesn 52pueID)
] SAIMIANIZQ U3AIW ¥MA OhGIY WAl PIVRIGNS SEM Y §Y'T PUE LRUOL S{Y) 38LSN JdeM 5,0UBIID 0) PAPPE SeM 15313 UDAUED O PIAAIP J¥ BY' O (€103 Y "MI0 LN} BUP3 5,3PUBID OADLYY BJA 15313 UCAUE) 03 Jajewm paliddns ouead0 (T
26 YALVM dMS 03UOLS 15H1SKI TIAVTIVAY S, HLNOW SNOIAIEd 15910N
sT°00¢ [%e08  [vozeer [xo]o %0 [0 i [yoZLLT [%b's [zzozT oL
m %€79 vl (%00 o 79 |veve Py [eg | Ws|
B35 %€T6 (9948 [%0 |0 %0 [0 %E'T6 [99°78 9 et €545 |%00 Jovo %00 Jooo [wve esus  |%80 21 95D,
186921 w166 |16'8L1T %0 [0 %0 [0 %1°56 [16'8LTT_[%9'S |00z [%0 (000 |%0 [00D  [%9's Joooc fovzr 8 [97'05Z [%0'0 [000 %00 |00 [%T'SE |9T0SZ |%0°Z] 8695 ad|
99 I Puivey [o1'72s  [%0'0 [000  |%00 1000 |%v'ze [or4zs |%€9| 0699 89)
00k ¥ss  [EC0EP [%0 [0 I%0Jo  Tsves [ecoer  I%e's [s0'0v [%0[000  [%0 000 [%E'S [L007 Josi lo ] i '0_looo %00 [000 (%00 000 [%00 Joo'e  |%0'0] 000 0530
r0'TST <r'ge le6wezt %00 |ovo [%00 oo |10z [s6v8zr | %5y | voTsT oV
tav] % _ adesn *_-:_.. *_5.5 % _.IS % _5:: 173: x_..:a % _.-..: HALYM | HALYM % | o8esn | % [edesn| % [sdesn| % | edesn | % |odesn| % [eBwsn| % |sfesn o1
HINOW ams dms | vuinoo)
SHL  [ANS3Ud OLIDYSN| MAMSS | MdMSS | qalsInoay HINOW | MdMSS | MdMs TBYIVAY| a3sols AN3s3ud {zeda} sniins | juswsppuz 29vsn {zedoy) sniding
SIYIATEG | IVONNY V201 v a SIHLIDVSN | Ay [ TvioL 3y [TELVA wefoid KTHLNOW | aford
yIYM V101 WONNYIVIOL | peicas TvioL paicrs
Tvi0L 1 ANIS3Ud OL ANVNINVE HINOW SIHL wereld @ Ay UOW 4L
SIWIANIQ / 3OVSN HALYA THVTVAY SINIATHA / I9VEN WIVM TIEVIVAY
{MAMS) HILVM 1DF0ud HILYM ZLVIS UILVM LOHOUd 23401




Draft
Amended and Restated

Low Reservoir Response Plan

for the

San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District
Zone 3

August 17, 2018



Table of Contents

1 Introduction, Purpose and Plan AdOPLiON .......ccivmierinieeniininiiieeni et s
2 BACKEIOUNG woeenieeiiicectenee e ts e ettt s s s b b e e e st E e S h RS dEEsaEEsae ees
3 LRRP ElRIMIENES. . iuvrieuviieisinrceresieritecesesertestre e e sreesaes et satssan s s ebbessbnsssan e R e saneaRseab e e sa e e s e b e s e e b hr A b b e e s e b s bt s
3.1 Commencement Of the LRRP .....c.coovcieirirrenrerenrt ittt
3.2 Operation Under the LRRP........c.ociiiimiiinn e s
3.2.1 INitIal LRRP AllOCAEIONS ...vvvecvereericeicrrerciereceestsisi st cnnesies st nr e enss s e s s et sub et assesensa e vonssnes
3.2.2 Subsequent LRRP AlIOCAtIONS.......c.coucvermiiiriniiiiie ittt
3.23 Diversion/Downstream Release ReqUIr€mMEeNtS......cooeivviiirieriiiciinninniincinnnerse e

3.3 Termination 0f the LRRP ....cccviieveerernceiriii it st
3.4 Adaptive Management ...t e b
Appendix A. LRRP Commencement & Adaptive Management FIow Chart..........coocininnniininnns



SLOCFC&WCD Zone 3 Introduction, Purpose and Plan Adoption
Low Reservoir Response Plan-Public Review Draft

1 INTRODUCTION, PURPOSE AND PLAN ADOPTION

This Amended and Restated Low Reservoir Response Plan (LRRP) describes a set of actions that the San
Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District (District) Zone 3 will implement when
the amount of water in storage within the Lopez Reservoir drops below 20,000 Acre-Feet (AF) provided
that the District or County Board of Supervisors (BOS) has proclaimed an emergency related to Zone 3.
*Note that this may not be required for CEQA. To be determined* The purpose of the LRRP is to facilitate
multiple-year management of individual Zone 3 member agency water supplies during periods of low
reservoir storage to enable the member agencies to sustain water supply availability and maintain water
quality during extended droughts.

Droughts and other conditions have unpredictable impacts on water supplies. The duration of droughts
and the actual amount of rainfall and run-off during droughts can differ significantly. As a result, the LRRP
has been developed to provide an initial set of prescribed actions combined with an adaptive
management approach. The purpose of the LRRP is to act as the guiding document during low storage
emergencies, as outlined in the Interim Downstream Release Schedule dated July 20, 2006 (IDRS). The
initial prescribed actions establish baseline actions, and several adaptive management scenarios are
included so that actual hydrological conditions can be evaluated during low storage periods. In summary,
ongoing evaluation of actual hydrological conditions is needed during low storage periods, and through
the adaptive management approach, prescribed actions can be modified, if needed.

As the governing body of the District—operator of the Zone 3 system and the entity with authority under
Article 4(B) of the Water Supply Contracts to reduce the member agencies’ entitlements due to, without
limitation, drought conditions—the BOS is responsible for final adoption of the policies and procedures
set forth in the LRRP. Prior to adoption by the BOS, the following steps are necessary:

1. Development of the draft LRRP guided by the Zone 3 Technical Advisory Committee (TAC).
Review of the draft LRRP with Zone 3 agricultural stakeholders.

3. Consideration of policy direction that may be provided by any of the governing boards of the Zone
3 agencies as the draft LRRP is being developed.

4. Review and approval by the Zone 3 Advisory Committee (AC).

5. Formal approval by the governing boards of the Zone 3 member agencies, by resolution, with
appropriate findings to address the following:

a. The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).

b. Emergency provisions that are unique and necessary to the LRRP, but which may differ
from (or require divergence from) contract provisions that control Zone 3 operations and
deliveries during normal operating conditions.

6. Final approval by the BOS.
7. Implementation of the LRRP as described in this document and outlined in Appendix A.



SLOCFC&WCD Zone 3 Background
Low Reservoir Response Plan-Public Review Draft

2 BACKGROUND

Since its completion in 1969, the Lopez reservoir has experienced extended periods of low reservoir inflow
that have led to decreased storage levels within the lake. Analysis of historical storage data from Lopez
Reservoir identified that the lowest storage water level (11,047 AF) within the reservoir occurred in
December of 2016. Figure 1 shows monthly storage levels within Lopez Reservoir since April 1969. Since
1992, there have been significant changes in dam operations, (e.g. IDRS implementation) that affect the
amount of water that is released and diverted from the reservoir on an annual basis. On December 16,
2014, the District Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution No. 2014-377 adopting a prior version of the
LRRP. Modified operations and historic drought conditions have highlighted the need for evaluation of
LRRP reduction scenarios.

60,000
50,000
40,000
30,000
20,000
10,000
0

O NN NONOOANMINOVUNYNONNENONONOANMINWNON O N M LN

O MmN NN NN 0NNV NVDRNRNNNNNNNDINOOODO0O00O O A A A

RN ANNNANNNNRANNNNONNNTNOOOOCOO0CO00000DO00Q

Sedeigggiga g gednigigigi g ddanogoaalolol gl gl Qlolqlol ol o el

Ll Lt oL socht i A 0 c oLk Scs WO 2RO >cs0WOE >0C

CrB S5 502 000l 0R5250lddrs 0l 008533080000 285530830206

Cs=-"qunlzo-SusLsS LnO0zAa-wLesSIL<s S gunOzoa-u3Ls S nOzo—

Figure 1. Lopez Reservoir Storage
3 LRRP ELEMENTS

3.1 COMMENCEMENT OF THE LRRP
¢ The policies and procedures set forth in the LRRP shall commence to apply when both of
the following occur: (1) the total volume of water in the Lopez Reservoir falls below
20,000 AF, and (2) the BOS has proclaimed an emergency related to Zone 3. *Note that
this may not be required for CEQA. To be determined* The initial prescribed actions, once
the LRRP commences to apply, are as follows:



SLOCFC&WCD Zone 3 LRRP Elements
Low Reservoir Response Plan-Public Review Draft

3.2 OPERATION UNDER THE LRRP

3.2.1 Initial LRRP Allocations

Upon LRRP commencement, each of the Zone 3 member agencies and the downstream
releases are assigned water storage accounts to be managed individually. Initial
allocations to the water storage accounts will be determined on the first day of the next
month after LRRP commencement. Zone 3 member agencies’ and downstream release
initial allocations are calculated as the sum of the available Surplus Water, remaining
Entitlement, and proportional share of unallocated water within the reservoir less the
estimated evaporation anticipated for the remainder of the Lopez Water Year.
Proportional shares for Zone 3 member agencies and downstream releases are calculated
based on each agencies’ percentage of the Lopez Entitlement as shown in Table 1.
Unallocated water is defined as water stored jn the reservoir excluding water below
minimum pool, or 1,700 AF, water allocated to any water storage accounts, stored State
Water Project water or water from any other source outside Zone 3, and estimated
evaporation for the remainder of the current Lopez Water Year.

Table 1. Lopez Reservoir Safe Yield and Entitlements

Lopez Annual

Water Contractor Entitlement (AF) % of Safe Yield
Arroyo Grande 2,290 26.2%
Oceano CSD 303 3.5%
Grover Beach 800 9.2%
Pismo Beach 896 10.3%
CSA 12 Total 241 2.8%

Zone 3 Member Agencies Subtotal 4,530 51.9%
Downstream Releases 4,200 48.1%

Total Safe Yield 8,730

3.2.2 Subsequent LRRP Allocations

Additional allocations to water storage accounts while operating under the LRRP will be
made at the beginning of each Lopez Water Year and will be based on net inflow from the
previous Lopez Water Year (i.e. April 1-March 31*). .

o Net inflow equals the sum of stream inflow, water gained through direct
precipitation, and any remaining water set aside for evaporative losses the
previous year that is remaining, less evaporation for the upcoming year.

o Net inflow is assigned proportionally to the Zone 3 member agencies and the
downstream releases water storage accounts according to each agencies’ and
downstream releases’ percentage of Lopez Entitlement shown in Table 1.



SLOCFC&WCD Zone 3 LRRP Elements
Low Reservoir Response Plan-Public Review Draft

o There is a maximum storage amount assigned to the downstream releases water
storage account of 8,802 AF'. Water exceeding the downstream releases water
storage account maximum will be allocated to the Zone 3 municipal agencies
proportionate to their municipal Entitlements at the beginning of the Lopez
Water Year.

3.2.3 Diversion/Downstream Release Requirements

To provide the District, Zone 3 agencies and the agricultural stakeholders with an initial framework for
water supply planning, recommended reduction and recovery targets, tied to the amount of Lopez Water
within the reservoir and in the downstream releases water storage account, were developed for the LRRP.
Stored SWP Water shall not be counted as water in the reservoir for the purposes of determining
reductions in municipal diversions or downstream releases.

The initial prescribed actions and the recommended reduction and recovery targets for Zone 3 municipal
diversions and downstream releases are shown in Table 2 and in Table 3, respectively. As the amount of
water in the reservoir drops below or rises above these targets, the TAC will review the hydrologic
condition as well as water quality and if necessary, utilize adaptive management to recommend
modifications to municipal diversions and downstream releases to meet the objectives of the LRRP.

Upon commencement of application of the LRRP, the initial prescribed actions dictate that downstream
releases are to be reduced according to the reduction strategy described in, which includes reduction
triggers, reduction percentages and resulting downstream releases. The Initial Prescribed Downstream
Release Reduction Strategy was developed through a collaborative process that included input from the
District and agriculture and municipal stakeholders. The resulting downstream releases represent the
maximum amount of water that can be released. The District, at the beginning of the Lopez Water Year,
will work with the agricultural stakeholders to develop a schedule for the reduced releases for the
upcoming Lopez Water Year to meet the needs of the agricultural stakeholders and to address
environmental requirements. This downstream release reduction strategy may be modified through
adaptive management, following the protocol outlined in Section 3.4.

18,802 AF approximately represents the anticipated amount of water in the downstream release water storage
account when entering the LRRP at 20,000 AF. LRRP storage initiation trigger (20,000 AF) — minimum pool
requirement (1,700 AF) — Zone 3 agencies’ Entitlements (4,530 AF) ~ Member Agencies’ portion of unallocated
water (51.9%%9,570=4,967 AF) = 8,802 AF



SLOCFC&WCD Zone 3 LRRP Elements
Low Reservoir Response Plan-Public Review Draft

Table 2. Initial Recommended Municipal Diversion Reduction Strategy

Recommended Municipal
Diversion (AFY) Targets?

Recommended Municipal
Diversion Reduction Targets

Amount of Water In Storage
(AF)

20,000 0% - 4,530
15000 ) 10% 4,077
10,000 o 20% 3,624 2
5,000 - o 35%3 2,941
1,700 100% 0

Table 3. Initial Prescribed Pownstream Release Reduction Strategy

Amount of Water in Downstream Initially Prescribed Releases Downstream
Downstream Storage Storage Account (AFY)? Prescribed
Account (AF) Reduction from Releases
Maximum (%) Reduction from
Entitlement {%)
8,802 0% 3,800 max 9.5%
6,602 25% 3,800 max 9.5%
4,401 50% 2,172 min® 48.3%
2,201 Y 75% 1,086 min® 74.1%
0 100% Pass through flows up to 413 90.2-100.0%
max’

2 The actual amount of water diverted may vary as agencies manage usage of their Lopez Water Storage Accounts.
Furthermore, municipal diversions are subject to treatment and conveyance capacity considering the apparent
water quality and operational conditions.

3 The 35% reduction provides sufficient water to supply 55 gallons per capita per day (GPCD) for the estimated
population of the Zone 3 agencies (47,696 in 2010 per the 2010 Zone 3 UWMP). 55 GPCD is the target residential
indoor water usage standard used in California Department of Water Resource’s 2015 UWMP Method 4 Guidelines.
4 These downstream releases represent the maximum amount of water that can be released to maintain agricultural
and environmental releases at near average amounts for the first two years. Actual releases may be less or more if
releases can be changed while still meeting the needs of the agricultural stakeholders and addressing the
environmental requirements.

5 The 2,172 AFY release value is from the minimum release of 3 cfs identified in the IDRS.

5 The 1,086 AFY release value is from the San Luis Obispo County Regional Instream Flow Assessment prepared by
Stillwater Sciences in January 2014, which indicated 1.5 cfs per day (~1,086 AFY) for summer months would be a
sufficient amount of water needed in an aquatic ecosystem, or released into it, to sustain aquatic habitat and
ecosystem processes in Arroyo Grande Creek.

7 The 413 AFY release value represents a historical {2008-2017) average of the inflow to the reservoir during the
months of July, August and September. The Lopez Reservoir Water Rights permit requires “pass-through” or
release of these flows during those months.



SLOCFC&WCD Zone 3 LRRP Elements
Low Reservoir Response Plan-Public Review Draft

e The policies and procedures set forth in the LRRP shall no longer apply when both of the
following have occurred and shall not recommence to apply until both conditions in
Section 3.1 have again been met: *Note that this may not be required for CEQA. To be
determined* (1) the BOS terminates the emergency proclamation related to Zone 3; and
(2) storage in the reservoir is at least approximately 31,725 AF, thereby providing
sufficient water within the reservoir, in excess of the 20,000 AF trigger, to supply one year
of safe yield (8,730 AFY) and to account for evaporation (~2,995 AFY8); and

o If the triggers for exiting the LRRP are met sometime mid-water year, the Zone 3
member agencies can continue to use their stored water until the end of the
water year. At the beginning of the next water year (April 1**'), Zone 3 agencies
will receive their annual entitlement plus an amount of surplus water equal to
10% of each agency’s stored water account as of the end of the water year in
which the LRRP was exited and utilized per the existing water contracts
(entitlement first, surplus second) until the end of the following water year; and

o Inthe event that Lopez Reservoir spills while under the LRRP, stored State
Water Project (SWP) water (foreign water) will be lost first, then agency stored
water. Each agency will lose water proportional to their ratio of stored water
within the reservoir at the time of the spill.

To provide the District, the Zone 3 agencies and agricultural stakeholders with sufficient flexibility to adapt
to changing conditions and to address the environmental requirements, the LRRP includes an adaptive
management component that allows the initial prescribed actions to be modified and adapted to the
specific conditions. The steps for modifying the initial prescribed actions are outlined below and are
shown in Appendix A.

1. The TAC will review several factors including the time of year that implementation of the LRRP
commences, when the reservoir level drops to lower triggers, and Hydrologic Conditions including
but not limited to: predicted climatic conditions; anticipated reservoir inflow; and the availability
of the Zone 3 agencies’ other water supplies.

2. If determined to be necessary, the TAC will make a recommendation to the AC on a strategy for
modifying the initial prescribed actions, hereafter referred to as an Adaptive Management

Strategy.

8 Evaporation assumed to equal the maximum historical value between April 1970 and March 2018 (76.25 in/yr in
WY 1971-72) applied to the reservoir surface area estimated at a storage level of 28,730 AF. Lake surface area
estimated based on a lookup table provided by the County, which uses a 2002 survey to correlate reservoir elevation,
storage, and surface area.



SLOCFC&WCD Zone 3 LRRP Elements
Low Reservoir Response Plan-Public Review Draft

3.

Upon review of the TAC's recommendation, the AC will vote to recommend approval of the
Adaptive Management Strategy by the County’s Public Works Director. If the Public Works
Director intends to alter or return the Adaptive Management Strategy or determines that there
is sufficient need for additional input, then the Public Works Director’s intent shall be recorded in
writing and brought to the BOS for final decision to allow the Zone 3 Advisory Committee
members the opportunity to appear and address the proposed Adaptive Management Strategy.



SLOCFC&WCD Zone 3 Appendix A
Low Reservoir Response Plan-Public Review Draft

APPENDIX A. LRRP COMMENCEMENT & ADAPTIVE MANAGEMENT FLOW
CHART

A-1



ASa1e.415 WD3) paiepdn uo paseq pazijeul aq [jim -luswdoaaag Japun

Heiq MY J)|qNd-ueld ssuadsay JIoAIas3Y MO
4 xipueddy € 9UOZ OOMBI4D0TS






AVILA BEACH

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA. 93424

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Kevin Mclean, SLO County Fire Marshat ™"\
Via Brad Hagemann, General Manag%g,y

DATE: January 10, 2023 }

SUBJECT: Second Reading and Adoption of an Ordinance Amending Title 15 of the Avila Beach
Community Services District Fire Code Ordinance by Adopting the 2022 Edition of the
California Fire Code Including Annual Supplements, State and Local Amendments

Recommendation:
Staff recommends that the Avila Beach Community Services District Board (“District”) consider this

staff report, staff presentation and public comment and thereon:

1. Open the public hearing and receive testimony regarding Ordinance No. 2022-01 of the Avila
Beach Community Services District amending Title 15 of the District Code.

2. Conduct second reading of the Ordinance by title only and proceed with final adoption of
Ordinance No. 2022-01 amending Title 15 of the District Code by adopting the 2022 Edition of
the California Fire Code including Annual supplements, State and Local Amendments.

Discussion:

Every three (3) years the California Fire Code is adopted in California by the California Building
Standards Commission. Local agencies that provide fire services must either accept the California Fire
Code in its entirety, make changes to meet the local needs, or reject the California Fire Code. If the
governing board chooses not to take action, the California Fire Code is automatically adopted in its

entirety by the local agency.

Proposed Ordinance No. 2022-01 was introduced and received its first reading on December 13, 2022,
by the Avila Beach Community Services District Board of Directors. The Board received the Staff
Report and presentation by the San Luis Obispo County Fire Marshal, provided an opportunity for
public comments and directed staff to schedule a Hearing on January 10, 2023, to consider adoption of
the Ordinance.

Attachments:
Ordinance No. 2022-01



ORDINANCE NO. 2022-01

AN ORDINANCE OF THE AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
AMENDING AND RESTATING THE DISTRICT’S FIRE CODE FOUND IN TITLE 15
OF THE AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICE DISTRICT CODES, INCLUDING
THE ADOPTION OF THE 2022 EDITION OF THE CALIFORNIA FIRE CODE,
INCLUDING ANNUAL SUPPLEMENTS AND STATE AMENDMENTS AND ERRATA.

WHEREAS, it is the desire and intent of the Avila Beach Community Services District
(“District”) to provide citizens with the greatest degree of protection from fire; and

WHEREAS, the California Building Standards Code, Title 24, which incorporates the
California Fire Code, is adopted every three years by order of the California Legislature
with supplements published in intervening years;

WHEREAS, the District contracts with the California Department of Forestry and the
Fire Protection for fire protection and enforcement of the District’s Fire Code; and

WHEREAS, the Avila Beach Community Services District proposes to make certain
changes in the requirements of the 2022 California Fire Code which are more restrictive
than State law and will affect all occupancies within the District; and

WHEREAS, California Health and Safety Code Section 17958.5 requires the District to
make express findings that due to local climatic, geological, or topographical conditions
that modifications and changes to the current California Building Code are reasonably
necessary to provide sufficient and effective protection of life, health, and property
before adopting such changes, and Section 17958.7 requires that such findings be filed
with the California Building Standards Commission; and

WHEREAS, the latest edition of the California Building Standards Code was published
and adopted this year and has the force of law beginning January 1, 2023 and any local
additions, amendments and deletions must then be incorporated; and

WHEREAS, this ordinance will adopt and amend the 2022 California Fire Code
including annual supplements and State amendments and errata; and

NOW THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the Avila Beach Community Services
District ordains as follows:

SECTION 1

A. General: Pursuant to Health and Safety Code §17958.5, the Avila Beach
Community Services District hereby finds that due to local climatic, geologic and
topographic conditions as stated in this section, that modifications and
amendments, as identified in this Ordinance to the current California Building
Standards Code (including the California Fire Code) are reasonably necessary to
provide sufficient and effective protection of life, health and property.



Climatic: The hot, dry weather in combination with Santa Lucia winds frequently
results in wildland fires in areas of the County of San Luis Obispo. These
conditions create an environment where the entirety of local fire department
personnel is required to control, monitor, fight and protect against such fire
situations in an effort to protect life and preserve property. The same climatic
conditions may result in the concurrent occurrence of one or more fires in the
more populated areas of the County without adequate fire department personnel
to protect against and control such a situation. During such periods, limited fire-
fighting resources support the imposition of greater fire-protection requirements
than set forth in the 2022 California Fire Code.

Geological: The County of San Luis Obispo is in an area of high seismic risk.
Four active faults are within the county, each capable of generating large,
damaging earthquakes. These faults are: the San Andreas Fault, which trends
northwest-southeast near the eastern boundary of San Luis Obispo County; the
San Simeon Fault, which is part of the larger Hosgri Fault Zone and parallels the
coastline in the northern part of San Luis Obispo County; the Los Osos Fault,
which parallels the Los Osos Valley a few miles southwest of the city of San Luis
Obispo; and the Oceanic Fault, which runs from the city of San Luis Obispo
northwest toward the community of Cambria, and was the fault responsible for
the Magnitude 6.5 San Simeon earthquake that affected the region in December
2003. In addition, there are several potentially active faults within the county,
including the Rinconada Fault, the Huasna Fault, and the Nacimiento Fault Zone.
These faults could also produce large earthquakes.

Earthquakes from these faults could produce primary effects such as strong
ground shaking or ground rupture, and secondary effects such as liquefaction
and landslides. These primary and secondary effects pose a significant hazard
to the county’s building stock and infrastructure, and to public health and safety.
These hazards include strong shaking causing collapse of vulnerable buildings
and bridges, ground rupture affecting roads and highways, and liquefaction
damaging buildings, pipelines (water, gas, sewage), marine facilities (docks,
jetties), railroads, and airports. Fire from broken gas lines and the lack of water
from broken water lines could result in major damage. Landslides caused by
strong shaking, possibly in combination with wet weather conditions, could block
highways and railroads, thereby isolating parts of the county and affecting
emergency response. Earthquake-induced landslides could also produce
rockfalls that could strike and damage buildings and vehicles. Tsunamis could
inundate the coastline. The protection of human life and the preservation of
property in the event of such an occurrence support the imposition of fire
protection requirements greater than set forth in the 2022 California Fire Code.

Topographical: The County of San Luis Obispo has rural areas that are in very
high fire hazard areas. Due to varied topography, access to structures in rural
areas increases response time and delays fire suppression efforts. An extended

2



response time will allow fires to grow beyond the control of initial attack fire
suppression resources. Large structure fires in the hiliside areas will have a
greater likelihood of starting a wildland fire, which may expose additional
structures to fire. The above described problems support the imposition of built-
in fire protection requirements greater than those set forth in the 2022 California
Fire Code.

SECTION 2 Chapter 15.08 of the District’s Fire Code is Amended and Restated as
follows:

Chapter 15.08

Fire Control Regulations

Sections:

156.08.010 Scope

15.08.020 Nationally recognized standards

15.08.030 Adoption of the California Fire Code by reference
15.08.050 Definitions

15.08.060 Authority to Inspect .
15.08.070 Amendments made in the California Fire Code

15.08.080 Fire Hazards/Weed and Waste Matter Abatement

Title 15 HEALTH AND SAFETY
Chapter 15.08 FIRE CONTROL REGULATIONS

15.08.010 Scope.

An Ordinance of the Avila Beach Community Services District amending and restating
the District's Fire Code including adopting the 2022 edition of the California Fire Code
with amendments, regulating and governing the safeguarding of life and property from
fire and explosion hazards arising from the storage, handling and use of hazardous
substances, materials and devices, and from conditions hazardous to life or property in
the occupancy of buildings and premises in the Avila Beach Community Services
District (“District”) providing for the issuance of permits and collection of fees.

15.08.020 Nationally recognized standards.

Where no applicable standards or requirements are set out in this code, or contained
within other laws, codes, regulations, ordinances or bylaws adopted by the District,
compliance with applicable standards of the National Fire Protection Association or
other nationally recognized fire-safety standards as approved by the fire chief shall be
deemed prima facie evidence of compliance with the intent of this code.



15.08.030 Adoption of the 2022 California Fire Code by Reference.

Except as amended by Sections 15.08.050 through 15.08.080 (below) the Avila Beach
Community Services District adopts by reference the 2022 Fire Code including
Appendix, Chapter 4, Section 103, Section 503 and Appendices, B, BB, C, CC, F, H
and P as modified and amended. All other Appendices to the 2022 Fire Code are
expressly not adopted Title 15 of the Avila Beach Community Service District
Regulations is hereby amended and restated accordingly. All annual supplements and
State Amendments and Errata to the 2022 California Fire Code, that are not
inconsistent with this Ordinance, are incorporated herein by reference.

15.08.050 Definitions

A. District Fire Chief, Fire Chief or Chief Fire Official means the
California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection/San Luis
Obispo County Fire Chief.

B. The District Fire Department means the California Department of
Forestry and Fire Protection and employees, apparatus, materials
and equipment assigned to it by the District and the California
Department of Forestry and Fire Protection pursuant to contract.

C. Property Owner means the owner of property whose name and
address appears on the latest equalized County assessment roll.

D. Governing Body or Appointing Authority means the District Board of
Directors.

E. Jurisdiction means the boundary of the Avila Beach Community
Services District.

15.08.060 Authority to Inspect

Employees of the District Fire Department are authorized to enter upon any property
or premises to ascertain whether the provisions of the Fire Code are being violated,
and to make any examinations, inspections and surveys as may be necessary in the
performance of their enforcement duties. Examinations may include the taking of
photographs, samples or other physical evidence. All inspections, entries,
examinations and surveys shall be done in a reasonable manner. If an owner,
occupant or agent refuses permission to enter or inspect, the Fire Code Official may
seek an administrative inspection warrant pursuant to the procedures provided for in
California Code of Civil Procedure Section 1822.50 through 1822.59.

15.08.070 Amendments made in the California Fire Code.

The California Fire Code, 2022 Edition, is amended, changed and incorporated into the
District’s Fire Code as follows:



101.1 Title. These regulations, including Sections 15.08.010 through 15.08.070,
shall be known as the Fire Code of the Avila Beach Community Services District,
and may be cited at Avila Beach Community Services District Fire Code, ABCSD
Fire Code, or the District Fire Code, hereinafter referred to as “this code” or the
District’s Fire Code.

Section 103. “Department of Fire Prevention”

A. The California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection/San Luis
Obispo County Fire Chief is:

1 The Chief Fire Official and is charged with the enforcement and
administration of the District Fire Code.

2 The Board of Directors' authorized representative to appoint Fire
Code Official(s).

3 The Board of Directors’ authorized representative to appoint
member of the California Department of Forestry and Fire
Protection with the authority of peace officers or public officers
pursuant to California Penal Code sections 830.2(g), 830.7(d) and
836.5(a) in performing their duties under the California Fire Code.

B. The Fire Chief is authorized to make necessary and reasonable
policies and procedures that are consistent with the provisions of this Fire
Code to aid in its implementation.

105.3.3 Occupancy and use prohibited before approval. The building or
structure shall not be occupied prior to the fire code official issuing a permit that
indicates that applicable provisions of this code have been met. No appliance,
device, equipment, or system shall be operated or used until the installation has
been approved and permitted by the fire code official and all applicable
provisions of this code have been met. It shall be the duty of the permit applicant
or contractor or both to cause the work to remain accessible and exposed for
inspection purposes.

109.1 Board of Appeals Established. In order to hear and decide appeals
of orders, decisions or determination made by the Fire Code Official
relative to the application and interpretation of this Fire Code, there shall
be and is hereby. created a Board of Appeals. Until such time as the
District Board of Directors appoints members to the Board of Appeals, the
Board of Appeals shall be the Board of Appeals appointed by the County of
San Luis Obispo. The rules of procedure for conducting the business of

5



the Board of Appeals shall be those procedures established by the County
of San Luis Obispo. The District Manager shall provide staff services for the
Board of Appeals. The Board of Appeals shall render all decisions and findings
in writing to the appellant with a duplicate copy to the Fire Code Official. The fee
for appeals shall be consistent with the fees established by the District Board of
Directors.

110.1 Unlawful acts. It shall be unlawful for a person, firm or corporation to

1. Erect, construct, alter, repair, remove, demolish or utilize a building,
occupancy, premises or system regulated by this Fire Code, or
cause same to be done, in conflict with or in violation of any of the
provisions of this Fire Code. To violate any provision or to fail to
comply with any of the requirements of this Fire Code.

2. To cause, aid, abet, or conceal the fact of a violation of this Fire
Code.

110.3 Notice of violation. When the Fire Code Official finds a violation
referenced in Paragraphs A (1), (2), or (3), above, the Fire Code Official is
authorized to prepare a written notice of violation describing the violation and,
when compliance is not immediate, specifying a time for re-inspection.

110.3.1 Service. A notice of violation issued pursuant to this Fire Code
shall be served upon the Property Owner, operator, occupant or the
person responsible for the condition or violation, either by personal
service, mail or delivering the same to, and leaving it with, some person of
responsibility upon the premises. For unattended or abandoned locations,
a copy the such notice of violation shall be posted on the premises in a
conspicuous place at or near the entrance to such premises and the
notice shall be mailed by certified mail with return receipt requested or a
certificate of mailing, to the last known address of the Property Owner,
occupant or both.

110.3.2 Compliance with orders and notices. A notice of violation
issued or served as provided by this Fire Code shall be complied with by
the Property Owner, operator, occupant or other person responsible for
the condition or violation to which the notice of violation pertains.

110.3.3 Prosecution of violation. If the notice of violation is not
complied -with promptly, the Fire Code Official is authorized to request
District Legal Counsel to institute the appropriate legal proceedings at law
or in equity to restrain, correct, or abate such violation or to require
removal or termination of the unlawful occupancy of the structure in
violation of the provisions of this Fire Code or of the order or direction
made pursuant hereto.



110.3.4 Unauthorized tampering. Signs, tags or seals posted or affixed
by the Fire Code Official shall not be mutilated, destroyed or tampered
with or removed without authorization from the Fire Code Official.

110.4 Violation penalties. Persons (as defined in Chapter 2) who shall violate a
provision of this Fire Code or shall fail to comply with any of the requirements
thereof or who shall erect, install, alter, repair or do work in violation of the
approved construction documents or directive of the Fire Code Official, or of a
permit or certificate used under provisions of this Fire Code, shall be guilty of a
misdemeanor except for those specifically declared by the Fire Code to be an
infraction. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Fire Code, any
misdemeanor violation or failure to comply may, in the discretion of the District
Legal Counsel or the Fire Code Official, be initially charged or subsequently
prosecuted as an infraction. Each and every infraction violation is punishable by
a fine not exceeding one hundred ($100) dollars for a first violation; a fine not
exceeding two hundred ($200) dollars for a second violation of the Fire Code
within one (1) year; and a fine not exceeding five hundred ($500) dollars for a
third violation of the Fire Code within one (1) year. Each and every
misdemeanor violation is punishable by a fine not exceeding one thousand
($1,000) dollars, or by imprisonment in the county jail for a period not exceeding
six (6) months, or by both such fine and imprisonment.

110.4.1 Abatement of violation. In addition to the imposition of the
penalties herein described, the Fire Code Official is authorized to institute
appropriate action to prevent unlawful construction or to restrain, correct
or abate a violation; or to prevent illegal occupancy of a structure or
premises; or to stop an illegal act, conduct of business or occupancy of a
structure on or about any premises.

110.4.1.2 Continuing violations. The imposition of one (1) penalty for
any violation shall not excuse the violation or permit it to continue.

110.4.1.3 Separate offense. For each and every day, unless stated
elsewhere, during any portion of which any violation of any provisions of
this Fire Code is committed, continued, or permitted by such person
(including firms or corporations) shall be a separate offense and
punishable accordingly.

110.5 Public Nuisance. Enforcement by Civil Action. In addition to the penalties
provided in the Fire Code, any condition caused or permitted to exist in violation
of any of the provisions of the Fire Code shall be deemed a public nuisance
and may be abated as such, and every day such condition continues shall be
regarded as a new and separate offense.

110.5.1 Injunctive Relief. The Fire Code may also be enforced by
injunction issued by the Superior Court upon the suit of the District. This
method of enforcement shall be cumulative and in no way affect the
penal provisions hereof.



110.5.2 Fees, Charges, Fines and Penalties. The amount of any fee,
service charge, fine or penalty of any nature whatsoever imposed by any
provision of this Fire Code shall be deemed a civil debt owing to the
District, County or Court. An action may be commenced in the name
of the District in any court of competent jurisdiction for the collection of
the amount of any such delinquent or unpaid fee, service charge, fine or
penalty together with any penalties applicable thereto as prescribed by
this Fire Code.

110.5.3 Collection of Fees, Charges, Fines and Penalties with Taxes.
The Board of Directors hereby adopts the procedures for the collection of
delinquent rates, charges, fines, penalties and fees established in
Government Code Sections 61115(c) and (d) or any successor statutes.
The General Manager or his/her designee is authorized to record a
certificate specifying the amount of any such charges, fines, and fees
and the name and address of the persons liable therefore, sixty (60) days
after the payment becomes delinquent, pursuant to Government Code
Section 61115(c).

110.5.4 Remedies Cumulative. Enforcement of the provisions of this
Fire Code and remedies for collection of various fees, charges, fines and
penalties are cumulative and may be pursued alternatively or
consecutively by the District. The District's use of any one of the
remedies, legal actions or enforcement actions prescribed herein shall not
bar the use of any other remedy, legal action or enforcement
procedures provided by the Fire Code or by law for the purpose of
enforcing the provisions hereof.

112.1 Failure to comply. Any person who shall continue any work after having
been served with a stop work order, except such work as that person is directed
to perform to remove a violation or unsafe condition, shall be subject to the
criminal sanctions set forth in Health and Safety Code Section 13871.s.

Section 202, “General Definitions”

Alteration. Any change or renovation to an existing structure other than a
repair or addition. Alterations include but are not limited to the addition or
elimination of walls within the existing building envelope. Alteration also
includes modifications to the structure which involve complete removal and
replacement of wall board within any room.

Amendment No 1
Section 202, “General Definitions” the definition of “Floor Area, Gross®’, is

amended by addition thereto as follows:



Floor Area Gross. For the purpose of calculating square footage for the
application of fire sprinkler requirements and fire flow requirements, the
floor area shall include all combustible areas attached to the structure,
including garages, patio covers, and workshops. Alterations and/or
remodel square footage will be considered a combined and cumulative
sum of floor area.

Sky Lantern. An airborne lantern typically made of paper with a wood
frame containing a candle, fuel cell composed of waxy flammable material
or other open flame which serves as a heat source to heat the air inside
the lantern to cause it to lift into the air. Sky candles, fire balloons and
airborne paper lanterns mean the same as sky lanterns.

308.1.6.3 Sky lanterns. The ignition and launching of sky lanterns is
prohibited.

Exceptions: Upon approval of the fire code official, sky lanterns
may be used under the following conditions:

(a) When necessary for religious or cultural ceremonies and
adequate safeguards have been taken in the discretion of
the fire code official.

(b) Sky Lanterns shall be tethered in a safe manner to
prevent them from leaving the area and must be constantly
attended until extinguished.

403.2.2 Procedures. Prior to Fire Department Review, proposed event
area must first complete all requirements pursuant to Title 22, the San Luis
Obispo County Land Use Ordinance. This includes receiving any
necessary land use permit approval and issuance of construction and
Conditional Use Permit requirements.

A fire safety review is required to ensure public safety in a place of
assembly, or any other place where people congregate, including but not
limited to; amusement buildings, carnivals and fairs, exhibits and trade
shows, open burning, flames and torches, candles, places of assembly,
temporary membranes structures and tents, pyrotechnics and special
effects, live audiences and any event with public attendance.

A written plan must be submitted to the fire code official 30 days prior to the
event. Written submittal requirements will be in accordance with Section
404 Fire Safety and evacuation plans. A field inspection verifying
compliance of fire and life safety conditions must be conducted prior to
public occupancy of the event. If modifications or additions to the event
areas are made, an updated permit & inspection must be completed.



405.7 Initiation. Where a fire alarm system is provided, emergency
evacuation drills shall be initiated by activating the fire alarm system. Prior to
initiating an alarm, the person initiating the alarm shall contact the fire alarm
monitoring company and advise the company’s dispatcher of the fire drill. In
cases where the fire alarm system is not monitored by a central station,
notification shall be provided to the fire department dispatch center.

503.2.9.4 Surfaces. Roads shall be designed and maintained to support the
imposed load of fire apparatus weighing at least 75,000 pounds and provide
aggregate base. Driveways and road and driveway structures shall be designed
and maintained to support at least 40,000 pounds.

503.2.9.5 Special Purpose Roads. Roads designated to service non-habitable
infrastructure to include specific group U occupancies including communication
towers and water tanks. Road shall be designed to have a minimum 12-foot
travel lane and 13 foot 6-inch vertical clearance. Special purpose roads
exceeding 150 feet in length but less than 800 feet shall have a standard turnout
near the midpoint of the driveway. Turnouts shall be provided at the terminus of
the roadway within 50 feet of infrastructure.

503.1.2.1 Maximum Dead-end Road Lengths. The maximum length of dead-end
roads, including all dead-end roads accessed from a dead-end road, shall not exceed
the following cumulative lengths, regardless of the number of parcels served:

Parcel size Length

Ie;t—h;r:)_ne (1) acre 800 feet o
1 acre to 4.99 acres | 1320 feet o
5 acres to 19.99 acres 2640 feet -

20 acres or larger a | 5280 feet

All lengths shall be measured from the edge of the roadway surface at the intersection
that begins from the road to the end of the road surface at its farthest point. Where a
dead-end road crosses areas of differing zoned parcel sizes requiring different length
limits, the shortest allowable length shall apply. Where parcels are zoned 5 acres or
larger, turnarounds shall be provided at a maximum of 1320 feet or 1/4 mile intervals.

10



Lengths exceeding maximum dead-end road distances require secondary access as
determined by the fire code official. Placement of roads shall be placed a distance
apart equal to not less than one-half of the length of the maximum overall diagonal
dimension of the property to be served, measured in a straight line between accesses.

Amendment No. 2
Section 503.1.2.1.1 is added to read as follows:

Section 503.1.2.1.1 Dwelling Units Developments of dwellings units, where the
number of dwelling units exceeds 30, shall be provided with two separate and approved
fire apparatus access roads when located in a state responsibility area or a very high
fire hazard severity zone.

503.2.7 Grade. The grade for all roads, streets, private lands and driveways shall
not exceed 20 percent. Design criteria shall be in accordance with San Luis
Obispo County Public Works public improvement standards. Roads having a
grade between12% and 20% shall be a nonskid asphalt or concrete surface as
specified in San Luis Obispo County public improvement Standards,
specifications and drawings. Any driveway with a proposed grade of between
16% and 20% must be approved by the San Luis Obispo County Fire Marshal.

Amendment No. 3
Section 503.2.9 is amended to read as follows

503.2.9 Driveway. Driveway specifications shall be provided and maintained when
serving no more than 4 dwelling units, and any number of accessory buildings.

Amendment No. 4
Section 503.2.9.1 is amended to read as follows

503.2.9.1 Driveway width: -
Length Required Width

0-199’ 12°

Greater than 200’ 14’

11



Amendment No. 5
Section 503.2.9.2 is amended to read as follows

503.2.9.2 Turnarounds. Turnarounds must be provided if driveway exceeds 300
feet, and shall be within 50 feet of the building. For driveways exceeding 300 feet, a
turn-around shall be at the building site and must be within 50 feet of the dwelling.

Amendment No. 6
Section 503.2.9.3 is amended to read as follows

503.2.9.3 Turnouts. For driveways exceeding 800 feet, turnouts shall be provided no
more than 400 feet apart. Driveways exceeding 150 feet in length, but less than 800
feet in length, shall provide a turnout near the midpoint of the driveway

A turnout shall be provided near the midpoint and shall be a minimum of 10 feet
wide and 30 feet long with a minimum 25 foot taper on each end.

503.9.4 Fuel Breaks. The Chief or his/her designee is authorized to cause an area
within 10 feet on each side of the driveway to be cleared of flammable vegetation
and other combustible growth. The Chief or his/her designee is authorized to enter
upon private property to do so.

Exception: Single specimens of trees, ornamental shrubbery, or
cumulative groundcover such as green grass, ivy, succulents or similar
plants used as groundcover provided they do not form a means of
readily transmitting fire.

503.4 Obstruction of Fire Apparatus Access Roads Fire apparatus access roads
shall not be obstructed in any manner, including the parking of vehicles. Minimum
required widths and clearances established under Section 503.2.1 shall be maintained
at all times.

503.4.2 Authority to Remove Obstruction. The Fire Code Official and his
authorized representatives shall have the power and authority to remove or cause to
be removed, without notice, any vehicle or object parked or placed in violation of the
California Fire Code and California Vehicle Code 22651. The owner of any item so
removed shall be responsible for all towing, storage and other charges incurred.

504.3 Stairway access to roof. New buildings two or more stories above grade plane,
except those with a roof slope greater than four units vertical in 12 units horizontal
(33.3-percent slope), shall be provided with a stairway to the roof or other access to the
roof for emergency personnel approved by the fire code official. Stairway access to the
roof shall be in accordance with Section 1009. Such stairway or other approved access
shall be marked at street and floor levels with a sign indicating that the stairway or
access continues to the roof. Where roofs are used for roof gardens or for other
purposes, stairways shall be provided as required for such occupancy classification.

12



505.1 Address Identification. New and existing buildings shall have approved address
numbers, building numbers or approved building identification placed in a position that
is plainly legible and visible from the street or road fronting the property. Where required
by the fire code official, address numbers shall be approved in additional approved
locations to facilitate emergency response. These numbers shall contrast with their
background. Address numbers shall be Arabic numerals or alphabet letters. Numbers
shall be a minimum of Residential 6 inches, Commercial 8 inches, and Industrial 10
inches high with a minimum stroke width of 0.5 inch (12.7mm)

505.1.1 Directories. Where access is by means of a private road and the building
cannot be viewed from the public way, a monument, pole or other sign or means shall
be used to identify the structure. Address numbers shall be maintained. When required
by the fire code official, complexes with multiple buildings may be required to provide
directories, premises maps and directional signs. The scale, design and location of
directory signs shall be approved by the fire code official and may be required to be

iluminated.

507.2.2.1 Water Tanks. Fire water tanks and exposed supply lines constructed of
combustible materials to include polyethylene/plastic are required to have 30 feet of
vegetation clearance. Readily flammable vegetation shall be cleared 30 feet in all

directions.

603.1.4 Fuel Oil. The grade of fuel oil used in a burner shall be that for which the
burner is approved and as stipulated by the burner manufacturer. Qil containing
gasoline shall not be used.

603.9 Gas meters. Above-ground gas meters, regulators and piping subject to damage
shall be protected by a barrier complying with Section 312 or otherwise protected in an
approved manner. Gas meters shall be permanently marked and identified as to the
building or system served.

606.8 Refrigerant Detector. Machinery rooms shall contain a refrigerant detector with
an audible and visual alarm. The detector, or a sampling tube that draws air to the
detector, shall be located in an area where refrigerant from a leak will concentrate. The
alarm shall be actuated at a value not greater than the corresponding TLV-TWA values
shown in the California Mechanical Code for the refrigerant classification. Detectors and
alarms shall be placed in approved locations. In addition, emergency shutoff shall also
be automatically activated when the concentration of refrigerant vapor exceeds 25
percent of LFL (Lethal Flammable Limits).

901.4.2 Non-required fire protection systems. Any fire protection system or portion
thereof not required by this code or the California Building Code may be allowed, when
approved by the fire code official, to be furnished for partial or complete protection
provided such installed system meets the requirements of this code, NFPA standards,

and the California Building Code.

Exception: An automatic fire sprinkler system shall not be permitted unless a
complete system.

13



Amendment No. 7

Section 903.1 Where required is amended to read as follows:

TABLE 903.1 - AUTOMATIC FIRE SPRINKLER SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS FOR

NEW CONSTRUCTION
SQUARE MIN. DISTANCES
1
SPRINKLERS FOOTAGE BETWEEN
STRUCTURE DESCRIPTION STRUCTURES | REQUIREMENT LISE EXCEPTION
TYPE DT AND P EXAMPLES
MIN MAX ND PROPERTY S
LINES (PL)
New buildings All new
New ' Yes including mobile 0 Per CBC, CRC Throughput new | construction Exception
Construction homes and buildings and 23 4
commercial coaches dwellings T
One story
. . garage,
iiz'::sr:'al Yes Accessory structures 1.000 3.000 50 feet from PL No heating, workshop, Exception
Struct ry as defined in CRC ’ ’ : cooling, living or studio, 1
ructure 30" between any | sleeping spaces | residential
structures on site storage bldg.
Accessory to Primary usage
. . S
Agricultural agll’liszgrcgsltogr%ra:on’ 100 feet from B, nl:::tsznecIZir/o One story Exception
9 Yes . » OTOp 5 3,000 5,000 50 feet from barn or P
Structure Agricultural operations crops 1
. . other structures stables
in accordance with AG
LUO & CBC definition
Pole barn, One story hay storage, Unlimited if 60 100 feet from PL, .
Covered . . No public use or See
No covered riding arena, feet on all sides 50 feet from . None
arena, access description
greenhouses per CBC other structures
Greenhouse
Agricultural 100 feet from PL, Ag-Barn on See
(r:E Xeg]rﬁ:'t No LLsJ?r;Ae% E:f?(gs'tt& 0 3,000 50 feet from Pear égelrzr)l(:r:? i Ag zoned
O perm gned atfidavi ' 9 land over 20 | Title 19
required) other structures
‘ acres
References:

CRC: California
Residential Code

Fire Code

CFC: California

CBC: California
Building Code

LUO: Land Use
Ordinance (San Luis

Obispo County)

14



Footnotes: :

 For the purpose of calculating square footage for the application of fire sprinkler
requirements and fire flow requirements, the floor area shall include all combustible
areas attached to the structure, including garages, patio covers, and workshops.

2. Automatic Fire Sprinklers installed at exterior locations shall be approved corrosion
resistant devices when environmental or operational conditions warrant.

Exceptions:

1. Structures between the minimum and the maximum square footage must meet all
the above table criteria and all the following are required in lieu of fire sprinklers: = no
conditioned or habitable space, = no second stories (lofts 1/3 the floor area and open to
below are allowed), = minimum two exits including one pedestrian door (side hinge
swinging door), = workshops or offices limited to 10% of floor area, = dedicated fire water
storage minimum of 5,000 gallons steel tank in full compliance with NFPA 1142 (see fire
safety plan) if there is no community provided fire hydrant within 500 ft., = structure
complies with the California Wildland Urban-Interface Ignition Resistant Construction
Requirements, = Cannot be used as a place of employment or for public
assemblage/events. = Cannot be used as a commercial building.

2. A single-story building or commercial coach where floor area does not exceed 1000
square feet and the occupancy is not a Group A, E Daycare, F1 Woodworking, group R,
Group H, Group | occupancy or any occupancy where cellulose nitrate film, pyroxylin
plastics or any hazardous materials manufactured, stored or handled in quantities in
excess of Tables in CBC, CFC or within Los Osos CSD and the fire flow from a hydrant
is less than 750gpm at 20psi.

3. Mobile/manufactured or factory-built homes or commercial coaches constructed or
altered on or before March 12, 2011 which were not manufactured with automatic fire
sprinklers.

4. Accessory dwelling units shall not be required to provide fire sprinklers if they are not
required for the primary residence.

15



Amendment No. 8

Section 903.2 Where required is amended to read as follows:

OCCUPANCY OR .
SURUCIURAL SHSNKIGRS DESCRIPTION S REQUIREMENTS | USE EXAMPLES S
MODIFICATION | REQUIRED® FOOTAGE '

TYPE
Alterations,
additions and E i
. xceptions
| Alterations Alteration includes 50% of rer) rgtoa d(:! \?vcilllljf)ree Inter(;orl
Yes, if... modifications to the | existing floor g FEMBCSIS 1,2,3,4
' structure area? considersd -
combined and Rehabilitation
[ cumulative sum
of floor area
Alterations,
Additions 1,000 sf additions and
cumulative from remodel square
Additions Yes, if... Jaritary O, 2008 or footage illibs Any addition Exception 4
regardless of any considered a
change of 50% of 1100" combined and
ownership area cumulative sum
of floor area
Hazard
classification
| Change results in ratmg as Any change of
Hazard . determined by occupancy
higher hazard or as ) ) )
Category and the fire code defined in None
deemed necessary -
Occupancy Yes by fire code official Any official, and Chapter 3 of
Classification y - occupancy the CBC
and the building -
Changes - classification as
official .
determined by
the building
official.
Cellulose nitrate
film or pyroxylin Building and any |
plastics or any | .
portion of a
hazardous -
Hazardous . building must Any occupancy None
) . materials . |
Materials Inside Yes Any also include
- manufactured, .
buildings requirements as [
stored or handled . .
in quantities in | SIScin P & ‘
excess of Tables in [ Chapten S005.4
CBC, CFC | |
| |
References:

CRC: California Residential

Code

Code

CFC: California Fire

CBC: California Building

Code

16



Footnotes:

 For the purpose of calculating square footage for the application of fire sprinkler
requirements and fire flow requirements, the floor area shall include all combustible
areas attached to the structure, including garages, patio covers, and workshops

2 Fire sprinklers are required when all ceiling coverings are removed, or a project
reaches the threshold of 50% of addition or alteration; determination of fire sprinklers
shall be made by one of the following methods: 1) By net floor area: Any room(s) or
area(s) that are added, altered, rehabilitated or repaired shall have their net floor area
calculated and compared to the total net floor area of the existing structure to find the
calculated percentage. 2) By surface area: Surface area shall be defined as surfaces
of walls and ceilings. Any room(s) or area(s) that are added, altered, rehabilitated or
repaired shall have their surface area calculated compared to the total wall and ceiling
surface area of the existing structure to find the calculated percentage.

Note: Change(s) in project scope after the plan review process shall require that the fire

sprinkler calculation be revised and submitted for review and approval.

3 Automatic Fire Sprinklers installed at exterior locations shall be approved corrosion
resistant devices when environmental conditions warrant.

4 Mobile/manufactured or factory-built homes or commercial coaches constructed or
altered on or before March 12, 2011 which were not manufactured with automatic fire
sprinklers are not subject to fire sprinkler requirements.

Exceptions:

1. Alterations limited to only one of the following: replacement of exterior coverings and
windows, roofing, electrical services, sewer laterals, retaining walls, or routine plumbing,
electrical and mechanical repairs.

2. A loft open to the floor below and no more than one third of the floor area of the room
below may be added without requiring sprinklers.

3. REPAIR is the reconstruction or renewal for the purpose of maintenance.

4. Accessory dwelling units shall not be required to provide fire sprinklers if they are not
required for the primary residence. Footnote 2 determination is required.

Section 903.3.8.6 Exterior notification. All fire sprinkler systems including NFPA 13,
13D, 13R shall provide a local water flow alarm.

904.11.1. Manual System Operation Training. It shall be the responsibility of the
business owner to ensure that all employees are knowledgeable in the use of manually
operated or activated fire-extinguishing systems within the occupancy.

905.3.1 Building height and area. Class lll standpipe systems shall be installed
throughout buildings where the floor level of the highest story is located more than 30
feet (9144 mm) above the lowest level of the fire department vehicle access, or where
the floor level of the lowest story is located more than 30 feet (9144 mm) below the
highest level of fire department vehicle access and in any parking structure.

17



A building that is greater than 20,000 square feet (1.858 m2) of floor area and greater
than18 feet (5.49 m) in height shall have a dry or wet standpipe system with a 2 72 inch
(64 mm) outlet at the roof near the roof access. Location of the outlet and the fire
department connection to the standpipe shall be labeled and approved by the fire code
official.

907.6.6 Monitoring. Fire alarm systems required by this chapter or by the California
Building Code shall be monitored by an approved central station service listed by
Underwriters Laboratory for receiving fire alarms in accordance with NFPA 72. The
central station shall contact and notify the fire dispatch center immediately on
notification of an alarm and prior to making contact with the protected premises.

Exception: Supervisory service is not required for:

1. Single- and multi-station smoke alarms required by Section 907.2.11.
2. Group I-3 occupancies shall be monitored in accordance with Section
907.2.6.3.4.
- 3. Automatic sprinkler systems in one- and two-family dwellings

Section 907.10.1. False alarms exceeding 3 per calendar year are subject to citation
and cost recovery.

5804.3 Outdoor storage. Storage of flammable cryogenic fluids in stationary
containers outside of buildings is prohibited, except when approved by the fire code
official. Where outdoor storage of cryogenic fiuids is allowed, containers of cryogenic
fluids shall not be located within diked areas containing other hazardous materials and
shall be in accordance with Sections 3204.3.1 through 3204.3.1.2.3.

5609.1 Fireworks prohibited. The manufacturing, possession, storage sale, use and
handling of fireworks, including without limitation, “Safe and Sane” fireworks, is
prohibited. '

Exceptions:
1. Use and handling of fireworks for professional display in accordance
with Title 19, California Code of Regulations, Chapter 6 and a District
Board resolution approving the public display.

5609.2 Seizure of Fireworks. The fire code official shall have the authority to seize,
take and remove fireworks stored, sold, offered for sale, used or handled in violation of
the provisions of Title 19, California Code of Regulations, Chapter 6 and California
Health and Safety Code, Chapter 9.

5704.2.9.6.1 Locations where above-ground tanks are prohibited. Storage of Class
I, Class Il, and Class Il liquids in unprotected above-ground tanks outside of buildings is
prohibited. Tanks containing fuels shall not exceed 8,000 gallons (30 274 L) in
individual capacity or 16,000 gallons (60 549 L) in aggregate capacity. Installations with

18



the maximum allowable aggregate capacity shall be separated from other such
installations by not less than 100 feet (30 480 mm).

5706.2.4.4 Location where above-ground tanks are prohibited. Storage of Class |
fiquids in above ground tanks outside of buildings is prohibited. Class Il and HI liquids
may be stored in approved above ground containers for the purpose of dispensing only
at facilities where no sales to the public occur and comply with Section 3406.1. Above
ground tanks containing Class Il and Class Il liquids shall not exceed 2,000 gallons.
Plans for the installation of above ground tanks shall be submitted to the Fire
Department for approval and in conformance with applicable codes and standards.
When required, a Conditional Use Permit shall be secured..

6104.2 Maximum capacity within established limits. The installation of any liquid
petroleum gas tank over 500 gallons (1,892 L) water capacity is prohibited unless
approved by the fire chief.

If any provision of Chapter 50 as it pertains to Explosive Material is in conflict with San
Luis Obispo County Code Chapter 6.32, the provisions of Chapter 6.32 shall control

If any provision of Chapter 56 conflicts with San Luis Obispo County Code Chapter
6.32, the provisions of Chapter 6.32 shall control.

Wildland-Urban Interface Fire Area is a geographical area identified by the state as a
“Fire Hazard Severity Zone” in accordance with Public Resources Code Sections 4201
through 4204 and Government Code Section 51175 through 51189, or other areas
designated by the enforcing agency to be at a significant risk from wildfires. Areas within
or in proximity to areas identified by the State as a “Fire Hazard Severity Zone” that
pose a significant risk from wildfires will be considered by the Avila Beach Community
Services District as a Wildland-Urban Interface Fire Area.

15.08.080 Fire Hazards/Weed and Waste Matter Abatement.

Section 15.08.80 is added to the Avila Beach Community Services District Fire Code as
follows:

A. Introduction

Property Owners and affected properties are exempt where enforcement
of this Chapter would result in the taking of endangered, rare, or
threatened plant or animal species or will result in significant erosion and
sedimentation of surface waters.

B. Weeds Constituting Fire Hazards.

1. All weeds which are described in paragraph B below, growing
upon any property or in any public street, sidewalk, or alley
which when exposed to the elements, endanger the public
safety by creating a fire hazard, and/or impedes access to

19



fire protection systems or facilities are declared by the
District Board of Directors to be a public nuisance.

2. The term "weeds" includes:

a. Weeds which bear seeds of a downy or wingy nature;
Sagebrush, chaparral, and any other brush or weeds
which attain such large growth as to become, when dry,
a fire menace to adjacent improved property;

b. Weeds that are otherwise noxious or dangerous;

C. Poison oak and poison ivy, when the conditions or
growth are such as to constitute a menace to the public
health;

d. Dry grasses, stubble, brush, dead shrubs, dead trees,

litter or other flammable material which endanger the
public safety by creating a fire hazard.

Waste Matter Constituting a Fire Hazard.

Rubbish, litter and other flammable materials (collectively waste matter)
which when exposed to the elements or which by reason of its location
would hamper or interfere with the suppression or prevention of fire
upon the premises, and/or endangers the public safety by creating a fire
hazard, are declared by District Board of Directors to be a public
nuisance

Authority of Fire Code Official.

The Fire Code Official is authorized to determine the existence of a
public nuisance and to abate the public nuisance pursuant to paragraphs
E and F, below.

Summary Abatement of Fire Hazards.

1. Pursuant to Government Code Section 61100(t) the provisions
of Part 5 (commencing with Section 14875) Division 12 of the
Health and Safety Code are incorporated herein by reference.

2. In the application of the provisions of Part 5 (commencing with
Section 14875) Division 12 of the Health and Safety Code, to
proceedings under this Section, the terms "Board of Directors”
shall be deemed to be a "Board of Supervisors" and the District
Fire Code Official or his/her designees shall be deemed to the
“persons” designated in Section 14890 of the Health and Safety
Code.

20



F. Violations.

The Fire Code Official is authorized to use provisions of Section 109.3 of
this Fire Code, as amended to abate public nuisance.

SECTION 3. Incorporation of Recitals.

The Recitals to this Ordinance are true and correct and are incorporated herein by this
reference.

SECTION 4. Severability.

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance and/or the Code
Sections adopted by this Ordinance are for any reason held to be unconstitutional,
ineffective or in any manner in conflict with the laws of the United States, or the State of
California, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this
Ordinance. The Goveming Board of the District hereby declares that it would have passed
this Ordinance and the Code Sections adopted by this Ordinance, and each section,
subsection, sentence, clause and phrase thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or
more sections, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase be declared unconstitutional,
ineffective, or in any manner in conflict with the laws of the United States or the State of
California.

SECTION 5. Effect of Headings in Ordinance.

Title, division, part, chapter, article, and section headings contained herein or in the
various Codes adopted hereby do not in any manner affect the scope, meaning, or intent
of the provisions of this Ordinance or the related Code Sections.

SECTION 6. CEQA

The District Board of Directors has considered the Amendment and Restatement of the
District's Fire Code. The Board of Directors has, as a result of its consideration, the
evidence presented at the hearings on said matter, and all comments that were
received during the public hearing process, finds that the amendment and restatement
of the District's Fire Code does not constitute a "project" under the California
Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA") (Public Resources Code Section 21000 et. seq.) or
its implementing Guidelines (14 California Code of Regulations Section 15000 et seq.)
("CEQA Guidelines"). The Board of Directors finds that the adoption of this amendment
and restatement of the District Fire Code, including amendments to the California Fire
Code constitutes “general policy and procedure making” described in Section
15378(b)(2) of the CEQA Guidelines which are deemed not to be "projects”. Even if the
adoption of this amendment and restatement of the District Fire Code, including the
amendments to the California Fire Code is a "project" for purposes of CEQA, the District
Board finds that it is exempt from review pursuant to Section 15061(b)(3) which
provides that an activity is not subject to CEQA review where it can been seen with
certainty that there is no possibility that it may have a "significant effect on the

21



environment." The District Board finds that it can be seen with certainty that there is no
possibility that the adoption of the amendment and restatement of the District Fire Code,
including the amendments to the California Fire Code may have a significant effect on
the environment. The District General Manager is authorized to prepare, execute and
file a notice of exemption pursuant to the above provisions.

SECTION 7. Inconsistency.

To the extent that the terms of provision of this Ordinance or the Code amendments
adopted hereby, are inconsistent or conflict with the terms or conditions of any prior District
Ordinance(s), Motions, Resolutions, Rules, or Regulations, governing the same subject
matter thereof, then such inconsistent and conflicting provisions of prior Ordinances,
Motions, Resolutions, Rules, and Regulations are hereby repealed.

SECTION 8.

Nothing within this Ordinance or the amendment and restatement of the District Fire
Code shall be construed to affect any suit or proceeding impending in any court, or any
rights acquired, or liability incurred, or any cause or causes of action acquired or
existing, under any act or ordinance hereby repealed as cited in Section 7 of this
Ordinance; nor shall any just or legal right or remedy of any character be lost, impaired
or affected by this Ordinance.

SECTION 9. Publication.
The summary publication procedures authorized by Section 25124(b)(1) of the

Government Code are hereby approved. The summary shall be prepared by the District
Fire Chief or his/her designee.

22



SECTION 10. Effective Date.

This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and effect thirty (30) days after its
passage. Before the expiration of the fifteenth (15") day after passage it shall be
published once with the names of the members of the Board of Directors voting for or
against the Ordinance in a newspaper of general circulation within the District.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors held on December 14, 2022,
and passed and adopted by the District Board of Directors on the 10" day of January,
2023 by the following roll call vote to wit:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:
Pete Kelley, President of the Board of Directors
Avila Beach Community Services District
ATTEST:

Brad Hagemann
District General Manager and Secretary

23



AVILA BEACH

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA. 93424

MEMORANDUM
TO: Board of Directors

)
FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Managgr
DATE: January 10, 2023

SUBJECT: Election of Board Officers for Calendar Year 2023
Director Appointments to Committees

Recommendation:

Elect officers for the calendar year 2023; appoint Directors to standing committees.

Discussion:

At the end of each calendar year it is customary to elect the officers of the Board and to appoint
committee membership for the upcoming year.

1. Election of Officers

At this time, it would be appropriate to elect offices for the positions of Board President and Vice
President.

The officers for the calendar year of 2022 were as follows:

President Pete Kelley
Vice President Ara Najarian

Nominations should first be taken from the floor for the office of President; nominations do not
require a second. After there are no further nominations, a motion should be made and seconded
to close nominations. A vote is then taken for each candidate. The candidate receiving the most
votes, and a majority, of votes of the quorum present, is elected to office. The office of Vice
President should be elected in the same manner as President.



2z Committee Appointments

At the beginning of the calendar year it is customary to appoint members of the Board to
committees for the coming year.

Listed below are the CSD standing committees for the 2022 calendar year; additionally, Ad-Hoc
committees may be designated, as necessary.

Standing Committees

Finance: Directors Kristin Berry, Ara Najarian
Personnel: Directors Pete Kelley, Lynn Helenius
Facilities: Directors Pete Kelley, Howie Kennett

Drought: Directors Ara Najarian, Lynn Helenius



